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“Dear shareholders, investors, and partners of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation”

First of all, on behalf of the Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
(HTG), | would like to extend my best wishes for good health and sincere thanks to our shareholders,
partners, and investors for your trust in the leadership team and staff of the Company.

Looking back at the past year of 2024,
we take pride in the achievements that
the Corporation has attained, despite
the numerous challenges and intense
competition in the textile and garment
industry market. We have successfully
completed all the tasks and goals set by the
Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group
and the General Meeting of Shareholders of
the Corporation. Additionally, in 2024, the
Corporation was honored to receive the
“Exemplary Enterprise for Workers” award,
the “National Brand” award, and many other
prestigious awards and certificates, ...

The year 2025 is expected to continue to be
full of challenges. The Vietnamese textile
industry will face a combination of various
influencing factors, including the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP)
agreement and U.S. tariff policies. While the
RCEP agreement offers great opportunities
to expand our export markets, especially to
countries like China, Japan, South Korea,
and ASEAN, the challenges from U.S. tariff
policies remain a concern. This policy could
reduce the competitiveness of Vietnamese
textile products, requiring us to continuously
improve product quality, increase productivity,
and apply new technologies to maintain and
increase market share.

In addition, the Government's policy on
streamlining the administrative apparatus,
especially the merging and restructuring of
state agencies, including the State Securities
Commission (SSC), will create changes in
legal and management processes. This may
impact the legal procedures related to stock
issuance, securities trading, and corporate
governance.However, Ibelievethesechanges
will create significant opportunities for
businesses, especially listed companies, to
improve their governance systems, enhance
transparency, and reduce compliance costs,
thus enabling us to access capital more
easily and develop more sustainably in the
future.

With the solidarity and efforts of the entire
leadership team and staff, | am confident

that Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation will overcome all difficulties and
continue to grow strongly in 2025. We will
continue to solidify a strong foundation for a
bright future, expanding the Hoa Tho brand on
the map of the Vietnamese textile industry and
contributing to the successful implementation
of the country’s socio-economic development
mission.

On behalf of the leadership of Hoa Tho Textile
- Garment Joint Stock Corporation, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to all
our shareholders, partners, customers, and
employees for their continued support. We
look forward to continuing to receive your trust
and partnership as we move forward with the
Corporation’s sustainable development journey.

Sincerely.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nguyen Van Hai
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HOA THO TEXTILE - GARMENT JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

4 Securities Code: HTG
Chartered Capital: VND 360,027,080,000
Owner’s capital: VND 923,964,139,539 as of December 31, 2024
Address: No. 36 Ong Ich Duong Street, Hoa Tho Dong Ward, Cam Le District, Da Nang City
Q Telephone: (+84) 2363 846 290
Fax: (+84) 2363 846 216
Website: www.hoatho.com.vn
Email: office@hoatho.com.vn
Business Registration Certificate No.: Number 0400101556 issued by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Da Nang City, first issued on January 30, 2007, and registered for the

25th amendment on October 11, 2024.
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HOATHO
ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

When Da Nang City
was liberated, Hoa
Tho Textile Factory
was taken over by
the government and
resumed operations
on April 21, 1975.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation
was established, originally
known as Hoa Tho Textile
Factory (SICOVINA)
under the Vietnam Textile
Company

Hoa Tho Textile Factory
transformed into a state-
owned enterprise named
Hoa Tho Textile Company

according to the
establishment decision
No0.241/TCLD dated March
24,1993, by the Ministry of
Light Industry.

The

according
No.
the
Corporation.

was
renamed Hoa Tho Textile
and Garment Company
to decision
433/Qb-TCLD
Textile

of

The company
transitioned to a
one-member limited
liability state-owned
company, Hoa Tho
Textile and Garment,
by decision No.
200/2005/Qb-TTg
on August 8, 2005,
issued by the Prime
Minister

On July 2, 2007, Hoa Tho
Garment Joint
Stock Corporation
approved by the State
Securities Commission of
Vietnam (SSC) for public
company registration.

Textile

Successfully organized an initial
public offering at Hoa Tho Textile
and Garment, a state-owned limited
liability company, with a total of
900,000 shares sold and an average
sale price of VND 12,249 per share.
On November 15, 2006, the company
transitioned to a joint-stock company
named Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation under the
business registration certificate No.
3203001300 issued on January 30,
2007, by the Da Nang Department
of Planning and Investment with
an initial charter capital of VND
45,000,000,000.

The Chairman of the SSC
issued Registration Certificate
number 81/ UBCK-GCN for Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Company, approving
the registration for public
offering of shares, increasing
the charter capital to VND
150,000,000,000.

The company received
the Securities Registration
Certificate No. 171/2010/

GCNCP-VSD from the
Vietnam Securities
Depository, with a total of
9,650,000 registered
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ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS (Next)

Based on the resolution

of the annual general On February 23,2017, the company
shareholders’ meeting, a completed a capital increase to
plan was approved to issue VND 225,000,000,000. In June
shares for the management 2017, the company officially
and employees who have registered to trade on the UPCOM
significantly contributed exchange under the trading name
to the development of Hoa HTG. Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company is a member
Joint Stock Company. The unit of the Vietnam National Textile
company successfully sold & Garment Group (Vinatex) and
750,000 shares, increasing the Vietnam Textile and Apparel
the charter capital to VND Association (Vitas), which is part of
157,500,000,000. the Ministry of Industry and Trade.

According to the resolution
of the annual general
shareholders' meeting,
which approved the
issuance planformanagerial
staff who have made
significant contributions
to the development of Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Company, the
company successfully sold
1,125,000 shares, increasing
its charter capital to VND
236,250,000,000.

Following a plan to issue The company
shares for managerial added retail food in
staff who contributed specialized stores to
significantly to the company’s its business activities.

development, 787,500 shares
were  successfully  sold,
increasing the charter capital
to VND 165,375,000,000. The
company filed and received
the Public Offering Securities
Registration Certificate
No. 83/GCN-UBCKNN on
December 19, 2016.

GENERAL INFORMATION "li

According to  the
2022 annual general
meeting resolution
regarding dividend
payment through stock
issuance, the company

According to Resolution No. 21/
NQ-HDQT dated September 10,
2024, the Board of Directors of
the Corporation has agreed on
the policy to divest all shares

successfully issued in Central Cotton and General
6,378,750 shares, Trading Joint Stock Company,
increasing the charter with the number of shares to
capital to VND be transferred for divestment
300,030,750,000. being 6,500 shares

According to the 2023 annual general
meeting resolution No. 19/NQ-DHDCD on
April 15,2023, the company successfully
issued 5,999,633 shares, raising the
charter capital to VND 360,027,080,000.
Notably, in early November 2023, the
company officially listed its shares on
the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange,
showcasing the brand’s credibility and
the transparency of its financial and
corporate governance.

HOATHO

HOATHO
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND AWARDS IN 2024

November 4, 2024 Merriman

PRODUCTS ACHIEVING THE VIETNAM NATIONAL BRAND FOR THE PERIOD 2024 - 2026

ENTERPRISE FOR WORKERS

June 25, 2024

According to Decision No. 2776/QD-BCT dated October 21, 2024, by the Minister of Industry and

Trade, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation was awarded the Vietnam National Brand Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock

Corporation received the “Typical
Enterprise for Employees 2024” Award
organized by the Vietnam General
- Confederation of Labor, Ministry Of
':' - , P : Labour - Invalids And Social Affairs, the
o Fye e A MR DRas” = SRR iV MY Vietham Chamber of Commerce and

CHUNG NHAN T g N Industry, and the Labor Newspaper.
TANG CONG TY CP ! A i
DET MAY HOA THO

title for the period 2024 - 2026 for its Merriman fashion products.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation was also
presented with the “Second Prize
for Outstanding Creative Labor
Collective” medal at the 4th
Creative Labor Festival — 2024,
: organized by the Vietnam Textile
s e ey e A , e e Sl e : and Garment Union in collaboration

' N\ THUU"G Hlfgo = " I Beass: g with the Vietnam National Textile

: iR B, - and Garment Group.

—

According to Decision Hoa Tho Textile - ' _ (’T)
: | No. 232/QP-CEDM dated Garment Joint Stock e . B
- , \ . . W S VINATEX
e : ) September 30, 2024, Hoa Corporation received A
\ | P TON VINH

+ TONG CONG TY CO PHAN ' ' ' Tho Textile - Garment Joint a Certificate of Merit

* DET MAY HOA THO 1y Stock  Corporation ~ was for being a “Enterprise
SAN PHAM DAT THUONG HIEU QUGC GIA VIET NAM NAM 2024 | ' | : awarded the “Enterprise for Workers 2024"

SAN PHAM, THOI TRARG MERRINAN fOI’ WOI’keI’S |n the V|etnam
Textile and Garment
Industry 2024" award by the
Vietham Textile - Garment
Union, the Vietham National
Textile and Garment Group,
and the Vietnam Textile & in collaboration with
Apparel Association. the Vietnam National
Textile and Garment
Group.

ANH NGHIEP VI NGUGI LAO DONG
LAN THU VI - NAM 2024

Ha Nai, ngdy 12 théng 10 nam 2024

at the 4th Creative
Labor Festival -
2024, organized by
the Vietnam Textile
and Garment Union
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May 23, 2024

The Director General of the General Department of Vietnam Customs signed and issued Decision
No. 1230/Qb-TCHQ, extending the application of the Priority Enterprise regime to Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation for the period 2024 - 2026

May 13, 2024

According to Decision No. 2171/Qb-UBND dated May 13, 2024, the Chairman of
the People’'s Committee of Cam Le District awarded a Certificate of Merit to the
Party Committee of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation for being
an exemplary collective in studying and following the thoughts, ethics, and style of
Ho Chi Minh for the 2021-2024 period.

May 25, 2024

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation was awarded the Second Prize for the
Practical First Aid Competition for Occupational Accidents at the 10th Safety and Hygiene Skills
Contest in Da Nang City in 2024.

November 20, 2024

According to Reward Decision No. 64/QDKT-DTN dated November 20, 2024, the
Executive Committee of the Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth Union of Cam Le
District awarded a Certificate of Merit to the company for being an outstanding
unit leading in the field of Union work and Youth Movements in 2024.

CONG BOAN DET MAY VIET NAM
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND AWARDS IN 2024 HI

HOATHO

November 25, 2024

According to Decision No. 5465/Qb-UBND dated November 25, 2024, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation was awarded a Certificate of Merit by the Chairman of the People’s
Committee of Cam Le District for outstanding achievements in the work of “Youth Associations
and Youth Movements” in 2024.

December 24, 2024

According to Decision No. 5924/QD-UBND dated December 24, 2024, the Chairman
of the People’s Committee of Cam Le District awarded a Certificate of Merit to Hoa
Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation for its excellent achievements in the
“People’s Movement, Fire Prevention, Firefighting, and Rescue” in 2024.

December 25, 2024

The Party Committee of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation received a
Certificate of Merit for achieving the “Excellent Completion of Tasks” standard for 2024,
awarded by the Executive Committee of the Party Committee of Cam Le District.

December 28, 2024

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation was awarded a Flag of Merit
by the Vietnam General Confederation of Labor as an “Outstanding Unit” in the
Workers’ and Civil Servants’ Movements and Trade Union Activities in 2024.

E——
LIENDOANT ** BONG THANH PO DA NG
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BUSINESS LINES AND LOCATIONS OF THE BUSINESS
LOCATIONS OF BUSINESS

Manufacturing and  Trading,
Import and Export of Garments,
Fabrics, Yarns, Sewing Threads,
Equipment, Raw and Auxiliary
Materials, and Textile Industry
Components

Manufacturing and
Trading of Mechanical
Products; Leasing
of Fixed Assets and
Machinery

Real Estate Business,
Land Use Rights owned
by the owner, users, or
leased

BUSINESS LINES

Hoa Tho has a primary distribution network concentrated

” DOMESTIC MARKET

HOATHO in major cities such as Hanoi, Da Nang, and Ho Chi Minh City

The company offers a diverse range of products like suits,
trousers, jackets, and protective clothing that meet high

INTERNATIONAL MARKET e :
standards and are well-received in stringent markets like the
USA, Europe, Japan, and South Korea.
Information Processing of Steel » US market 48%.
Technology Services Frame Structgres, T e o » European market 13%.
an?ei'[’czzrg;;?c?:;er- Irlm\:?z;gtﬁgtlucr)lpz'ir » Asian market 22% (of which Japan 16%).
Systems, Pressure » Other markets 17%.
Transportation-related Service Systems
Activities: Includes logistics, agency HEADQUARTERS
services, cargo handling, customs 36 Ong Ich Duong, Cam Le District, Da Nang City
procedures, and transportation of O.I
goods by sea, rail, road, and air both
domestically and internationally. SUBSIDIARY AFFILIATED COMPANY

05

02
f1o
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

BOARD OF ADVISORS:
- Recruitment

- Salary

- Emulation

- Discipline

- Liquidation

- Science Technology
- Labour protection

- Conciliation

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

INTERNAL CONTROL

COMMITTEE

GOVERNANCE MODEL AND OF

DEPENDENT
COMPANIES

Hoa Tho spinning
factory 1

Hoa Tho spinning
factory 2

Hoa Tho Garment
Factory 1

Hoa Tho Veston Garment
Factory

Hoa Quy Garment
Factory

Hoa Tho-Dien Ban
Garment Company

Hoa Tho-Dong Ha
Garment Company

Hoa Tho Quang Ngai
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Que Son
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Trieu Phong
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Fashion
Business Center

Hoa Tho commercial
center

OPERATION
DEPARTMENTS

Corporation
Office

Financial and Accounting
Department

Technique & Investment
Department

Living Conditions
Department

Information Technology
Department

Garment Sales
Department

Center for Research and
Development of Apparel
Products

Garment Quality
Control Department

Garment Import and
Export Department

Yarn Sales
Department

Yarn Technology
Department

Legal and General Affairs
Department

s
|

SUBSIDIARIES

Hoa Tho Fashion Joint
Stock Company

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Hoi An

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Duy Xuyen

Hoa Tho Yarn Joint Stock
Company - Thang Binh

[
Hoa Tho Construction
Mechanical Limited
Liability Company

CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTION
AND ASSOCIATION
COMPANIES

Ho Chi Minh City
Textile and Garment
Trading Joint Stock

Company

Central Cotton Joint
Stock Company

Hoa Tho Packaging Joint
Stock Company -
Quang Da
I
Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Phu Ninh

|
Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company -
Quang Nam
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GOVERNANCE MODEL

The governance model at the Corporation includes: the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of
Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the General Director

252N

It includes all shareholders and is the highest decision-making
body of the Corporation. The General Meeting of Shareholders
meets annually to decide on matters within its authority as
stipulated by law and the Corporation’s Charter

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS (GMS)

Hoa Tho Fashion

31 Phan Chau Trinh,
Hai Chau | Ward, Hai

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

n“
- . . .

Main Production and
Business Sector

Wholesale of fabrics,

Charter
Capital
(Billion

VND)

GOVERNANCE MODEL AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE "li

HOATHO

Ownership
Percentage

BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
(BOGD)

The Board of Directors is the governing body of the Corporation,
with full authority to act on behalf of the Corporation to decide
all matters related to the Corporation’s objectives and interests,

except for matters within the authority of the General Meeting
of Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board of Directors leads
the Board. The functions, duties, powers, and responsibilities
of the Chairman and members of the Board are carried out in
accordance with the law, the Corporation’s Charter, and the

Board's organizational and operational regulations.

&OARD OF SUPERVISORS (BOS) \J

The Supervisory Board, elected by the General Meeting
of Shareholders, is the organization that represents the
shareholders to monitor all business activities, management,
and operations of the Corporation. The Head of the Supervisory
Board leads the Board. The functions, duties, powers, and
responsibilities of the Head and members of the Supervisory
Board are carried out in accordance with the law, the
Corporation’s Charter, and the organizational and operational
regulations of the Supervisory Board

mBOARD OF MANAGEMENT (BOM) U

The General Director is responsible for managing all business

Member Limited
Liability Company

Cam Le District, Da
Nang City

National Highway 1A,

structures;
processing and
fabricating ventilation
systems, pressure
systems of all types.

. . .88%
Joint Stock Company Chau District, Da Nang ready-made garments, 101 76.88
. shoes
City
Hoa Tho Garment _?_6 NAgUX;n '(I'jaLThanh, Manufacturing of
2 Joint Stock Company an ) 1 Yrard, Fot ready-made garments 10.0 54.18%
Hoi A An City, Quang Nam udi |
- Hoi An Province (excluding apparel)
855 Hung Vuong Manufacturing of
Hoa Tho Garment Street, Duy Trung ready-made garments
3 Joint Stock Company -  Commune, Duy Xuyen (excluding  apparel) 10.0 81.73%
Duy Xuyen District, Qquang Nam Details: Garment
Province manufacturing.
4 Stock Company - . o Yarn Manufacturing 100.0 74.49%
Thang Binh Thang Binh District,
g Quang Nam Province
Mechanical
processing; metal
treatment and
Hoa Tho Mechanical 36 Ong Ich Duong, coating. Details:
ion Si Hoa Tho Dong Ward, Manufacturing
Construction Single g of steel frame 2 100%

- The associated companies

. . . . . Hoa Tho Garment Manufact f
activities of the Corporation. The General Director is assisted by . Ha Lam Town, Thang anuacture e .
) T ) 1 Joint Stock Company - . o ready-made textiles 21.0 30.61%
the Executive Board, which includes Deputy General Directors, Quang Nam Binh Dlstrl.ct. Quang (excluding apparel)
the Executive Director, and the Chief Accountant. The General Nam Province
Director is accountable to the law, the General Meeting of Cho Lo Industrial
Shareholders, and the Board of Directors for the execution of Hoa Tho Garment Cluster, Tam Thai Manufacture of ready-
assigned tasks. The functions, powers, and responsibilities of 2 Joint Stock Company-  Commune, Phu Ninh made garments 20.0 20.00%

the General Director are in compliance with the Corporation’s Phu Ninh

Charter and regulations

District, Quang Nam
Province

(excluding apparel)

2
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS
THE COMPANY’S MAIN OBJECTIVES

Focus on transforming corporate governance, gradually applying
digitalization in production and business activities to improve efficiency,
competitiveness, and product value in the value chain.

Diversify and expand export markets, seek and exploit new markets as
well as potential customer segments.

Enhance business efficiency and maximize shareholder profit by
maintaining and developing core businesses in the textile and garment
industry. Simultaneously, improve financial management to ensure
sustainable development.

Continue investing in scientific and technical research and applying
information technology to improve production processes; upgrade
modern and automated machinery and equipment systems.

Strengthening the supervision of the Board of Directors, Board of

Supervisors and Internal Audit Board to ensure transparency and

financial efficiency to bring practical benefits to shareholders.

Implement social responsibility and environmental protection
goals through green production and the application of international
standards for environmental and labor management. This objective
aims towards sustainable development and creating long-term value
for the Corporation and the community.

MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

» Continue to innovate and develop core products
while diversifying the product portfolio to meet
the increasing demands of customers. Promote
research and development to create high-value
and differentiated products, helping to maintain
a competitive position in the market. Continue
expanding export markets, especially in potential
regions such as Europe and the US. Simultaneously,
strengthen domestic market development,
particularly in e-commerce channels and domestic
fashion sectors.

» Set a target to promote the application of
information technology and digital transformation
in production, management, and business
activities. Invest in automation technologies to
optimize production and management processes,
minimize costs, and increase productivity.

» Continue investing in green production
technology, environmental protection, and the use
of renewable energy. Factories will be upgraded to
meet green and sustainable standards, minimizing
negative environmental impacts and enhancing
resource efficiency.

» Enhance production capacity in key areas,
especially the Central region, to develop Yarn -
Weaving - Dyeing - Sewing supply chains. The
company will build and upgrade factories according
to international standards, while standardizing
production processes and quality management
systems to improve productivity and product
quality.

DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS "lI

HOATHO

» Continue to focus on training and developing
humanresources, creating ateam of highly qualified,
creative personnel who can meet the company’s
requirements in the digital age. Promote training
and career development programs to enhance
employees’ competitiveness and creativity.

» Expand and consolidate strategic partnerships
domestically and internationally, thereby creating
opportunities for cooperation and expanding
distribution channels, improving access to
international markets, and optimizing the supply
chain.

» Improve financial management, optimize costs,
andensure financial stability to maintain sustainable
growth. Apply modern financial management
methods to maximize profits and bring real value
to shareholders.

» Implement socially responsible and
environmentally protective activities, focusing on
community programs and social security.

» Optimize  operational efficiency, focusing
on environmental protection measures, using
renewable energy, efficiently exploiting energy
and water resources, and ensuring sustainable
development criteria are met.

» Continue to effectively implement environmental
protection, fire prevention and fighting, security and
order, fire and explosion prevention, food safety
and hygiene, and occupational safety to ensure the
Corporation’s production and business activities
are safe and efficient.

=
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS (Next)
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

» Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation is committed to relentlessly striving
to ensure benefits for shareholders, employees,
and customers. We strive to maintain stable
business operations, create job opportunities,
and provide stable incomes for employees.

» Focusing on caring for the material and
spiritual lives of employees, fully implementing
welfare regimes, coordinating with doan thé
organizations to promote emulation movements
in production and labor, and maintaining practical
welfare programs for employees.

» Committed to creating the safest working
conditions, helping employees feel secure in their
work and maximize their potential. The goal is to
build a healthy, civilized, and advanced working
environment, ensuring work efficiency and high
labor productivity.

» The Corporation always facilitates the activities
of doan thé, political, and social organizations at
the company, such as the Party, Trade Union, and
Youth Union, helping to create a united and cohesive
working environment.

» The Corporation focuses on the labor community
and social security, upholding human values as the
core value of the company culture. The company
shares with and supports employees in difficult
circumstances, while contributing to charitable
activities and community support, especially in
remote and disadvantaged areas.

» The Corporation always resolutely complies with
and acts in accordance with legal regulations,
especially in matters related to the environment. All of
the company’s production activities must comply with
regulations and legal standards, ensuring sustainable
development and environmental protection.

HARMONIZING WITH THE ERA

BUSINESS

PHILOSOPH

DEVELOPMEN
ORIENTATIO

DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS '1

HOATHO

ENDURING WITH HUMANITY

To be a pioneering and sustainable
enterprise in the textile and garment industry,
a trusted partner in the global supply chain,
using digital technology as a platform for
connection and operational excellence.

» The right people are the most valuable as-
set of the corporation.

» Real value is created for customers.

» Contributing to the development of the
country, the living environment, and meeting
the expectations of shareholders.

Pioneering in business  solutions,
continuously improving to accompany
leading customers and partners in the global
textile and garment industry.
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RISKS

Risk management plays an important role in the

ensure that the business can effectively cope with
unforeseen fluctuations and maintain stability in
business operations. This process helps Hoa Tho
identify, assess, and control risks from internal and
external factors, thereby maximizing opportunities

development strategy of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation, helping the company maintain
stability and sustainable development in a volatile
business environment. The Board of Directors of Hoa

HOATHO

Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation has built

and implemented a risk management process system to

ECONOMIC RISKS

The world economy in 2024 continues to face many
major challenges, complex developments, and
many unfavorable factors. Unfavorable factors are
increasing, especially escalating military conflictsin
some countries, with unpredictable developments
and the risk of spreading. These tensions not only
cause loss of life and property but also negatively
impact the business environment. Conflicts and
international tensions exacerbate security issues,
destabilize global supply chains, and reduce the
flexibility of economies in adapting to change.
Strategic competition between major powers like
the US, China, and other nations has intensified,
increasing instability in international trade.
Protectionist trade policies and trade barriers are
increasingly established, impacting free trade
between countries. Consequently, the global
economy is fragmenting, leading to dispersion in
global supply chains and directly affecting export
activities, investment, and economic development
of nations, including Vietnam.

According to data from the General Statistics
Office of Vietnam, in 2024, despite numerous risks

and instabilities in the global economy, Vietham
maintained stable growth. Vietnam's export
turnover reached 37 billion USD, an 11.2% increase
compared to the previous year, placing Vietham
second globally in total textile and garment
export turnover, only behind China. The industrial
production index increased by 8.4% compared
to the same period last year, higher than the
1.3% increase in 2023 and 7.4% in 2022. Apparel
and textile production indices both experienced
strong growth, increasing by 11.7% and 12.1%
respectively, demonstrating recovery and positive
production growth.

However, the textile and garment industry still
faces significant challenges. Competition from
other textile and garment-producing countries
like China, India, and Bangladesh is intensifying,
and fluctuations in raw material prices can
significantly impact production costs. Despite this,
free trade agreements are opening up significant
opportunities for Vietnam, especially in accessing
new markets like Europe and the US.

and minimizing losses.

To address these challenges and capitalize on
these opportunities, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation needs to focus on
diversifying export markets, exploring new
potential markets, and leveraging the benefits of
free trade agreements. The corporation also needs
to increase investment in product research and
development, while applying new technologies to
enhance product quality and optimize production
efficiency. Improving risk ~ management
capabilities and developing scenarios to respond
to market fluctuations are key factors for Hoa
Tho to maintain stability and achieve sustainable

development in 2025.
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’ INTEREST RATE RISK

In 2024, the Vietnamese textile and garment industry
continued to face impacts from bank interest rate policies,
especially with changes in interest rates in major economies.
After 11 consecutive interest rate hikes from March 2022 and
maintaining a record high of 5.25-5.5% from July 2023, the US
Federal Reserve System (Fed) cut interest rates three times
in 2024 to 4.25%-4.5%. This created opportunities for central
banks worldwide, including the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV),
to maintain lower interest rates, thereby stimulating economic
growth.

In Vietnam, lending rates remained low in 2024 to support
businesses, including the textile and garment industry.
However, exchange rate pressure persists, making it difficult
for the SBV to further reduce interest rates. If interest rates
decrease too sharply, the exchange rate could increase,
affecting market sentiment and causing foreign investors to
withdraw capital. For the textile and garment industry, this is
a crucial factor to monitor, as borrowing costs constitute a
significant portion of product costs.

To respond to this situation, the Corporation needs to
proactively monitor and adjust its financial strategy,
particularly regarding cash flow management and selecting
appropriate loan sources, minimizing interest expenses,
diversifying capital sources, and proactively negotiating
preferential loan terms to maintain efficient production and
business operations.

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The VND/USD exchange rate remains a crucial
factor influencing the textile and garment industry,
especially for major export-oriented enterprises like
Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
(HTG), with 90% of its revenue derived from
exports. Exchange rate fluctuations directly impact
HTG's cost structure, as raw materials are primarily
imported from countries like China and India, while
finished products are exported to markets such as
the US, Europe, Japan, and Canada.

In 2024, the VND/USD exchange rate continued
to fluctuate, influenced by both domestic and
international economic factors. The State Bank
of Vietnam (SBV) implemented measures to
stabilize the exchange rate and prevent excessive
fluctuations despite global economic uncertainties.
At the end of 2024, the USD/VND exchange rate
hovered around 24,500 VND/USD, lower than the
highs recorded in previous years.

Exchange rate fluctuations directly affect HTG's
profits. A weaker VND against the USD can
increase the cost of imported raw materials,
especially those from China and India, potentially

pressuring the company’s profit margins. However,
a favorable exchange rate can enhance HTG's
export competitiveness, making its products more
attractive to international customers, thereby
boosting export revenue growth. Conversely,
prolonged exchange rate instability can create
uncertainty in financial planning and affect investor
confidence.

To mitigate exchange rate risks, HTG has
implemented specific financial strategies such as
forward contracts and hedging measures, ensuring
stable import costs and minimizing the impact of
sudden exchange rate fluctuations. The company
also constantly monitors global exchange rate
trends to adjust pricing strategies and financial
management, maintaining competitiveness in the
global textile market.

In the context of post-pandemic economic
recovery and the development of trade relations,
the exchange rate remains a critical factor in HTG's
strategy for maintaining and achieving sustainable
growth in the textile and garment industry.
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LEGAL RISK

Legal risk is a significant factor affecting the
stability and development capacity of the textile
and garment industry in general and Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation (HTG)
in particular. Operating in Vietham, HTG is
subject to and governed by the domestic legal
system, including fundamental laws such as
the Enterprise Law, Accounting Law, Labor Law,
along with policies, circulars, and decrees related
to taxation, customs, import-export activities,
and environmental protection.

Furthermore, as HTG is listed on the Ho Chi
Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE), the company
must also comply with the regulations of the
Vietnamese stock market, including those
related to information disclosure and corporate
governance.

In 2024, the Vietham Securities Law underwent
significant revisions, as stipulated in Law No.
56/2024/QH15, effective from January 1, 2025.
These changes will directly impact HTG in
updating and complying with requirements for
information disclosure, shareholder obligations,
and corporate governance. Additionally, the
Ministry of Finance is drafting amendments and
supplementsto Decree 155/2020/ND-CP guiding
the Securities Law to enhance the effectiveness
of stock market management and supervision.

HUMAN RESOURCE RISKS

In the current context, wages in Vietnam'’s textile
and garment industry have increased continuously
overthe years, now second only to China, and higher
than other major textile and garment exporting

countries such as India, Indonesia, Cambodia, and
Bangladesh. This is reducing the competitiveness
of Vietnam's textile and garment industry, as
competing businesses can maintain lower labor
costs, thereby increasing their competitiveness in
exports.

These adjustments may create new requirements that
HTG must meet to ensure its operations are fully and
accurately compliant.

Therefore, HTG needs to proactively update new
legal regulations, train personnel, and adjust internal
processes to minimize legal risks while capitalizing
on the opportunities these legal changes bring. The
corporate governance system also needs to be improved
to meet new standards, helping the business maintain
stability and development.

Particularly, in the textile and garment industry, labor costs account for a large proportion of the total
production costs of the Corporation. To train a skilled worker, the business must spend 3-6 months, during
which time HTG will have to bear training costs and costs incurred due to damaged products. Personnel
fluctuations, such as high turnover rates or a shortage of skilled labor, will also create difficulties in

maintaining productivity and product quality.

Despite facing human resource challenges, HTG has made efforts to maintain stable jobs and income

for all employees, while applying reasonable compensation, salary, bonus, and benefit policies to attract

and retain employees. However, to ensure sustainable development, the Corporation needs to continue to
improve labor management, promote training, develop professional skills for workers, and optimize labor

costs in the context of a competitive labor market.

COMPETITIVE RISKS

Vietnam's textile and garment industry always faces
competition in raw materials and prices from major
exporting countries such as China, India, Indonesia,
and Cambodia, which supply raw materials at cheaper
prices, thereby creating a great competitive advantage.
Bangladesh is one of Vietnam’s main competitors
in textile and garment exports. In 2020, Bangladesh
ranked 3rd in the world in textile and garment exports,
after Vietnam and China, with a turnover of 29.8 billion
USD. However, since 2022, Bangladesh has surpassed
Vietnam to become the world’s second-largest textile
and garment exporter, with a turnover of 49 billion USD,
asharpincrease of 64% compared to 2020. Meanwhile,
Vietnam's textile and garment exports only increased
from 35.3 billion USD in 2020 to 44.6 billion USD in
2022 and decreased by more than 10% in 2023, to
39.6 billion USD. Even China, the leading country in the
textile and garment industry, only recorded a growth
rate of 3.7% in 2023 compared to 2020.

This competition mainly stems from Bangladesh’s
cost advantage, with a minimum wage of only 75 USD/
month, much lower than Vietnam (199 USD/month)
and China (300 USD/month). This helps Bangladesh
maintain low production costs, thereby attracting low-
priced orders, especially during a period of weak global
consumer demand, reducing the competitiveness of
Vietnam's textile and garment industry.

However, in 2024, Bangladesh faced a serious
political crisis, leading to economic decline
and social instability. This crisis has caused
disruptions in the country’s textile and garment
production and exports. Protests and political
conflicts have significantly reduced production
and business activities in Bangladesh, creating
opportunities for other countries to strengthen
their position in the global textile market.

In this context, Vietham has the opportunity to
leverage its position in the global textile and
garment market. Participation in Free Trade
Agreements (FTA) such as CPTPP, EVFTA, and
RCEP has created significant opportunities
for the textile and garment industry to expand
markets and enhance competitiveness.

To capitalize on these opportunities and
maintain competitiveness, textile and garment
enterprises, especially Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation (HTG), need
to continuously improve labor productivity,
apply advanced technology to production, and
strengthen human resource management and
sustainable market development to minimize
production costs and enhance competitiveness
in the international market.
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RAW MATERIAL RISKS

The textile and garment industry relies heavily on im-
ported raw materials, especially fabrics and fibers
from countries like China. Therefore, fluctuations in
price, supply, and quality of these raw materials pose a
significant challenge for the company.

In the context of the increasingly complex international
situation, such as the war between Russia and Ukraine,
the sharp increase in the prices of raw materials like
cotton, crude oil, gasoline, and transportation costs
has directly affected the product cost of Vietnam’s
textile and garment industry. These factors increase
input material costs, especially when raw materials
are mainly imported from countries like China, which is
also facing political and economic influences.

In addition to rising prices, another risk factor for the
textile and garment industry is the requirement to trace
the origin of cotton, fabric, and yarn from Free Trade
Agreements (FTAs) such as EVFTA and CPTPP. The
requirements for “greening” textile products, ensuring
that products meet sustainable and environmentally
friendly standards, are creating significant challenges
for businesses. This not only adds costs to the produc-
tion process but also requires businesses to have long-
term strategies to control the quality of raw materials
and seek alternative sources.

To address these risks, HTG needs to continue to
strengthen the control of the quality and price of input
materials. At the same time, the company also needs
to optimize the supply chain, reduce dependence on
certain supply sources, and develop sustainable rela-
tionships with domestic and foreign suppliers. This
will help HTG maintain production stability and protect
profits in volatile market conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

Environmental protectionis not only an obligation
but also an essential factor for maintaining
the sustainable development of the enterprise.
Despite significant efforts in implementing
environmental protection measures, HTG still
faces many potential risks related to production
activities.

One of the major threats is environmental
pollution caused by wastewater, emissions, and
waste generated during the production process.
Dyeing, weaving, and fabric finishing processes
can generate harmful waste, affecting the
surrounding environment and threatening public
health. In addition, wastewater management
in textile factories is also a major challenge,
especially as the requirements for water
treatment and reuse are becoming increasingly
stringent by the authorities.

Despite this, HTG always focuses on fulfilling its
environmental protection responsibilities. The
Corporation has invested in using solar power

RISKS "li

HOATHO

systems, and applying renewable energy sources in
production to minimize dependence on fossil fuels
and limit negative impacts on the environment. HTG
has also developed and implemented environmental
incident prevention and response measures such as
wastewatertreatment, waste control,and remediation
of potential incidents. However, with increasingly
stringent legal requirements for environmental
protection and the constant change of environmental
protection policies, environmental risks remain a
factor that needs to be carefully managed.
Therefore, to ensure sustainable production and
meet environmental protection requirements, HTG
needs to continue investing in green production
technology, improving waste control and treatment
systems, and fully complying with environmental
regulations. At the same time, the company also
needs to develop contingency strategies to promptly
handle environmental incidents, protecting not only
the company’s interests but also the health of the
community and the surrounding environment.

OTHER RISKS

Besides risks related to the market, raw materials,
and the environment, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation (HTG) also faces uncontrollable
risks, such as epidemics, natural disasters, fires,
explosions, and other unexpected incidents. These
factors can cause significantdisruptionsto production
activities, affecting business performance, employee
safety, and company assets.

In this context, HTG proactively monitors and
gathers timely information about the surrounding
environment, including natural factors and epidemics
that may affect the company’s operations. The
Corporation has developed contingency scenarios
to respond flexibly to all emergencies, from natural
disasters to incidents caused by fires, epidemics, or
other force majeure events. These scenarios help
ensure the smooth operation of business activities
while minimizing damage to the company.
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LISTOF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD, AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

No.

Member

As of December 31, 2024

Position

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors cum General

2 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh Director
3 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri Member of the Board of Directors
4 Ms. Tran Tuong Anh Member of the Board of Directors
5 Mr. Le Quoc An Independent Member of the Board of Directors
SUPERVISORY BOARD
1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh Head of the Supervisory Board
2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Member of the Supervisory Board
3 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh Member of the Supervisory Board
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
] Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh General Director C%Tehg;r:wsber of the Board of
2 Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh Deputy General Director
3 Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau Deputy General Director
4 Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung Chief Executive Officer
5 Mr. Phan Quang Long Chief Executive Officer
6 Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang Chief Executive Officer
7 Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong Chief Executive Officer
8 Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang Chief Executive Officer
9 Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Hang Chief Executive Officer
10 Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long Chief Accountant

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,
AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

/i

HOATHO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESUME

O 1 Nguyen Van Hai
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Current Position
Work Experience
1992 - 2000
2001 - 2005

2006 - 02/2007

03/2007 — 04/2009

05/2009 - 2013

2014 - 08/2020

06/2020-10/10/2024

08/2020-10/10/2024

11/10/ 2024 to present

03/12/2024 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Head of the Automatic Embroidery Workshop at Vintex Company, Da Nang

Director of Garment Factory 1 — Hoa Tho Textile Company
Board Member and Director of Hoa Tho Garment Factory 1 — Hoa Tho Textile
- Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and Director of Hoa Tho Garment
Company - Dong Ha

Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and Director of Garment Factory 1,
Veston Research and Improvement Department at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Permanent General Director, Member of the Party Committee
Executive Board of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member and General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Party Secretary of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

- Personal: 142,056 shares, accounting for 0.39%

- Representative: owns 25% of total outstanding shares
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESUME (Next)

0 2 Nguyen Ngoc Binh
Board Member and General Director

Current Position

Work Experience

1999 - 2000

2001 - 2002
2003 - 2004
2005 - 2007
2008 - 2011

2012 - 2013

2013-2014
07/2014 - 10/10/2024

06/2017 to present
03/2015 to present

11/2015 to present
06/2022 to present
04/2023 to present
11/10/2024 to present

Number of shares owned:

Board Member and General Director

Import-Export Officer at Garment Factory 1 - Hoa Tho Textile Company
Import-Export Officer at the Textile Export-Import Business Department -
Hoa Tho Textile Company

Deputy Head of Textile Export-Import Business Department at Hoa Tho
Textile Company

Deputy Head of Import-Export Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile
Company

Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Company at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Head of Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chief Executive Officer and Head of Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Board Member and Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Thang Binh Yarn Joint Stock
Company

Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoa Tho Mechanical Construction
Single Member Limited Liability Company

Board Member of Viet Thang Corporation - Joint Stock Company
Board Member of Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company

Board Member and General Director

- Personal: 273,171 shares, accounting for 0.76%

- Representative: owns 25% of total outstanding shares

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,

AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT ’.lI

HOATHO

Nguyen Duc Tri

Member of the Board of Directors

Current Position

Work Experience

03/1990 - 04/1994
05/1994 - 03/1997
04/1997 - 05/2001
05/2001 - 07/2001
08/2001 - 12/2005

01/2006 - 12/2010
04/2010

03/2010 to present
01/2011-07/2020

04/2015-10/10/2024

06/2017 - 31/07/2020

01/01/2019 - 31/12/2019
01/01/2020 to present
28/05/2020 to present
01/08/2020 - 10/10/2024

11/10/2024 to present

Number of shares owned:

Member of the Board of Directors

Specialist at Tam Ky General Trading Company, Quang Nam - Da Nang
Deputy Manager of Import-Export Department, Vinatex Danang Branch.
Manager of Import-Export Department, Vinatex Danang Branch
Assistant to the General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Company

Chief Executive Officer, Hoa Tho Textile Company

Deputy General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Company, now known as Hoa
Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Quang
Nam.

General Director, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Secretary of the Party Committee, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chairman and General Director, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chief Executive Officer, Vietnam Textile Group
Deputy General Director, Vietnam Textile Group
Chairman of the Board, Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the Board, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.

Member of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

- Personal: 1,123,185 cshares, accounting for 3.12%

- Representative: owns 11.87% of total outstanding shares
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESUME (Next)

Tran Tuong Anh

Member of the Board of Directors

Current Position

Work Experience

07/1994 - 08/2017

01/2011 - 06/2014
07/2014 - 08/2024
05/2014 - 04/2022

04/2015 - 08/2024

04/2016 to present

Number of shares owned:

Member of the Board of Directors

Employee in the Administrative Organization Department, Deputy Head
of Labor Organization, Deputy Head of Administrative Personnel, Chief of
Office at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.

Chief Executive Officer of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors at Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company
Member of the Standing Committee of the Party Committee of Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member and Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

- Personal: 236,019 shares, accounting for 0.66%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

0 5 Le Quoc An
Independent member of the Board of Directors

Current Position

Work Experience

1972 - 1975
1975 - 1998
1998 - 2010
2010 to present

06/2017 to present

Number of shares owned:

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Specialist at the National Economic Development Fund

General Director of Viet Thang Textile Company

Chairman of the Board of Members of Vietnam Textile and Garment Group
Retired under the pension scheme

Board Member of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.

- Personal: 30,480 shares, accounting for 0.08%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RESUME
O 1 Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh
Head of the Board of Supervisors

Current Position Head of the Board of Supervisors

Work Experience

2002 - 2007 Accountant at Thai Duong Private Enterprise

Accountant at Nhan Luat Steel Investment and Business Joint Stock
Company

Accountant in the Finance and Accounting Department of Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Head of the Finance and Accounting Department of Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Internal Audit Department of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
2019 to present Stock Corporation, Head of the Board of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company,
Duy Xuyen

2007 - 2007
2007 -2013

2013-2019

09/2013 to present
Number of shares owned:

- Personal: 80,520 shares, accounting for 0.22%
- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

Hoang Duy Khanh

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Current Position Member of the Board of Supervisors
Work Experience

06/2013 to present Financial and Accounting Specialist at Vietnam Textile and Garment Group

04/2023 to present Member of thg Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Number of shares owned:

- Personal: 0 shares, accounting for 0%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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Nguyen Thanh Son

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Current Position

Work Experience

02/1990 - 07/1998

08/1998 - 12/1999

01/2000 - 02/2002

03/2002 - 12/2002

01/2003 - 04/2007

05/2007 - 04/2015

05/2015 - 10/2017

06/2017 to present

11/2017 to present

Number of shares owned:

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Maintenance Worker 3-4, Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile Plant

Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh
Communist Youth Union, Deputy Director of Garment Factory 1, Hoa Tho
Textile Company

Director of Garment Factory 2, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist
Youth Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation

Deputy of Labor Management, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist
Youth Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation

Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of
Emulation and Commendation, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist
Youth Union, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation

Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of
Emulation and Commendation, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho
Textile Joint Stock Corporation.

Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of Emulation
and Commendation, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile
Joint Stock Corporation

Member of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock
Corporation

Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Member of the Board of Supervisors,
Chairman of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation

- Personal: 120,380 shares, accounting for 0.33%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT RESUME

Nguyen Ngoc Binh

Board Member and General Director

Biography of Mr. Nguyen Van Hai, Ms. Tran Tuong Anh, Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh: please refer to the biography

of the Board of Directors

Hoang Thuy Oanh

Deputy General Director

Current Position
Work Experience

12/2000 - 03/2002

04/2002 - 04/2004
05/2004 - 07/2009

08/2009 - 05/2014

01/2011 - 06/2014
07/2014 to present
08/2020 to present

04/2023 to present

Number of shares owned:

Deputy General Director

Import-Export Specialist at Vinatex Danang Branch

Officer in the Import-Export Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile
Corporation

Deputy Head of the Import-Export Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile
Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock
Corporation

Chief Executive Officer, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation
Deputy General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation
Board Member, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Duy Xuyen

Board Member, Hanoi Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

- Personal: 187,968 shares, accounting for 0.52%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT RESUME (Next)

Tran Thi Hoa Chau
Deputy General Director

Current Position

Work Experience

04/2003 - 11/2007
12/2007 - 02/2009
03/2009 - 04/2013

05/2013 - 05/2015

06/2015 - 07/2020

08/2020 - 04/2022
05/2022 - 03/2024
04/2024 to present

05/2017 to present

Number of shares owned:

Deputy General Director

Staff Member, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Team Leader, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Manager, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chief Executive Officer and Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa
Tho
Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director and Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director and Manager, Garment Business Department 1, Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Hoi An Garment Joint Stock
Company

- Personal: 119,206 shares, accounting for 0.33%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,

AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT "li

HOATHO

04 Pham Ngoc Trung
Chief Executive Officer

Current Position

Work Experience

2000 - 2007

2008 - 2009

2010 - 08/2014
08/2014 to present
08/2015-08/2020
08/2014 - 03/2016
04/2016 — 08/2016

09/2016 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Executive Officer

In charge of planning at Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Deputy Director of Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Director of Hoa Tho Veston Factory, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chief Executive Officer and Director of Hoa Tho Veston Factory, Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company
- Duy Xuyen

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company
- Phu Ninh

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director, Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Phu Ninh

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company
- Phu Ninh

- Personal: 138,630 shares, accounting for 0.39%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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0 5 Phan Quang Long
Chief Executive Officer

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,
AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
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Nguyen Van Cuong

Chief Executive Officer

Current Position

Work Experience

06/1993 — 1995
1995 - 2002

2002 - 2013

2013 - 05/2014
06/2014 to present
08/2015 - 07/2017

01/2016 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Executive Officer

Planning officer for wages at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise
Materials officer at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise

In charge of planning at Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban
Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban
Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hiep Duc Garment Joint Stock Company

Chief Executive Officer of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation,
also serving as Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban

- Personal: 140,199 cshares, accounting fo r0.39%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

Nguyen Phuoc Hoang

Chief Executive Officer

Current Position
Work Experience

07/1996 — 04/1999

05/1999 - 09/2004
10/2004 - 02/2013
04/2013 - 03/2016

04/2016 to present

08/2020 to present

Chief Executive Officer

Worker at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Company

Production Shift Leader at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Labor Supervisor at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chief Executive Officer of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Current Position
Work Experience
12/1984 - 12/1987
01/1988 — 12/1997
01/1988 — 09/2003

09/2003 - 08/2011

08/2011 - 12/2019

04/2014 to present

01/2020 to present

01/2020 to present
11/2020 to present

05/2022 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Executive Officer

Accountant of MB Dien Quang Cooperative, Dien Ban, Quang Nam
Planning and accounting at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise

Chief Accountant at Quang Nam Garment Company

Specialist, Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting Department, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department at Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chief Accountant of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Board of Supervisors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company
Quang Nam

Chief Executive Officer of Finance, Person in Charge of Administration at
Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member of Hoa Tho Yarn Joint Stock Company Thang Binh
Board Member of Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company Duy Xuyen

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company

- Personal: 95,594 shares, accounting for 0.27%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

Number of shares owned:
- Personal:53,541 shares, accounting for 0.15%
- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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0 8 Nguyen Thi Thu Trang
Chief Executive Officer

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD,
AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

HOATHO

Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
Chief Accountant

Current Position

Work Experience

09/2007
08/2012
01/2014
08/2017 to present

08/2022 to present

06/04/2023 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Executive Officer

Office Specialist, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Specialist in Charge of Social Responsibility — Office of Hoa Tho Textile and
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Secretary of the Party Cell at the Office, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chief Executive Officer and Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

- Personal: 20,553 shares, accounting for 0.06%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

Nguyen Thi Minh Hang

Chief Executive Officer

Current Position

Work Experience

05/2012-06/2013
06/2013 - 08/2014
08/2014-12/2017

01/2018 - 04/2023

04/2023 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Executive Officer

Business staff, Export-Import Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Team leader, Garment Business Department 1, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Head of Garment Business Department 1, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Head of Garment Business Department 5, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chief Executive Officer, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

- Personal: 43,453 shares, accounting for 0.12%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares

Current Position
Work Experience

10/2005 - 12/2013
01/2014 - 06/2020

07/2020 to present

06/2017 to present

04/2022 to present

Number of shares owned:

Chief Accountant

Accountant at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Manager of Finance and Accounting at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Chief Accountant at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors at Hoa Tho Hoi An Garment Joint Stock
Company

- Personal: 54,330 shares, accounting for 0.15%

- Representative: owns 0% of total outstanding shares
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HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

Criteria

CLASSIFICATION BY QUALIFICATION

2024

Quantity (people)

Proportion (%)

HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES ’1
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AVERAGE INCOME OF EMPLOYEES OVER THE YEARS

Unit: Million VND/person/month

PLAN 2025

Average income of
8.78 9.96 9.66 10.92 11.16
employees

Total number of
9,807 10,339 10,133 9,631 9,955
employees (people)

Average income of workers in the period 2021-2024

10.92 11.16
9.96 9.66
8.78 _
2021 2022 2023 2024 Plan 2025

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation and
the Trade Union always closely coordinate to take care
of the material and spiritual life of employees. Welfare
policies, vocational training, and cultural and sports
activities help create a healthy working environment,
fostering solidarity and unity among members. Thanks
to this, the Corporation’s labor force is always stable
and qualified, ensuring the completion of production
and business targets in 2024 and subsequent years.

1 University, Post-graduate 507 5.26%

2 College, Vocational 575 5.97%

3 Basic and Technical Workers 262 2.72%

4 General Labor Qualification 8,287 86.05%
CLASSIFICATION ACCORDING TO LABOR NATURE

1 Direct Labor 6,468 67.16%

2 Indirect Labor 3,163 32.84%
CLASSIFICATION BY GENDER

1 Male 2,464 25.58%

2 Female 7,167 74.42%
ACCORDING TO CONTRACT DURATION

1 Short-term contract under 1 year 43 0.45%

2 Fixed-term contract 1 to 3 years 40 0.42%

3 Indefinite term contract 9,548 99.14%
ACCORDING TO MANAGEMENT LEVEL

1 High-level Management 14 0.15%

2 Mid-level Management 27 0.28%

3 Branch-level Management 36 0.37%
ACCORDING TO AGE

1 Ages 1810 25 896 9.30%

2 Ages 26 to 35 3,887 40.36%

3 Ages 36t0 45 3,465 35.98%

4 Over 45 1,383 14.36%

Total 9,631 100.00%
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POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy at Hoa Tho Textile and
Garment Joint Stock Corporation is designed
to ensure fairness and encourage employees
to contribute actively to the development of the
enterprise. The salary payment process is based on
the overall production and business results of the unit
and the individual contribution of each employee. The
Corporation applies the principle of paying salaries
according to job level coefficients, piecework wages,
and product wages, combined with evaluating work
completion results, to ensure reasonable and fair
wages for all employees.

The Corporation consistently ensures timely and
complete salary payments, including supplementary

payments such as the 13th-month salary, Tet
bonuses,andbonusesforsignificantholidayslike
New Year’s Day, April 30th, May 1st, and National
Day. Furthermore, performance-based reward
and recognition programs are implemented to
motivate outstanding teams and individuals,
fostering innovation and enhancing productivity.
The Corporation also provides seniority bonuses
and Tet gifts for long-term employees. This
policy helps secure the livelihood of employees,
motivating them to dedicate themselves to the
company'’s sustainable growth.

PROJECTED SALARY AND BONUS POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES IN 2025

Continue maintaining salary, bonus, benefits, training, and promotion policies for employees. The average

employee income will increase by 7% compared to 2024, and policies will be enacted to improve employee

well-being based on business performance

HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES ’1

HOATHO

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation is deeply aware
of the important role of human resources in ensuring the sustainable
existence and development of the enterprise. Therefore, the Corporation
constantly strivesto create a positive working environment and adequate
conditions for employees, from improving the quality of spiritual life to
improving the working environment. The Corporation regularly grasps
the thoughts and aspirations of employees to have reasonable support
policies, while maintaining high-quality training and recruitment. These
efforts help improve the capacity and quality of the workforce, create
attachment and peace of mind for employees, accompanying the
development and success of the company.

BENEFITS POLICY

» Complying with the welfare policies as prescribed
by the government, ensuring 100% of employees
are covered by social insurance, health insurance,
and unemployment insurance, providing 24/7
risk insurance for all workers, and offering health
insurance for key personnel, along with cancer
screening for female employees.

» Health check-ups for employees are organized by
Da Nang General Hospital to monitor and improve
workers’ health conditions.

» Cultural, artistic, and sports activities such as
cooking contests, folk culture festivals, and men'’s
and women'’s football tournaments are organized
to create a positive atmosphere, strengthen the
bond among company members, and build team
spirit.

» Birthday gifts are given to employees, and
gifts are presented to retired staff, with bonuses
provided during holiday periods such as New Year’s
Day, Lunar New Year, April 30, May 1, National Day,
and other occasions.

» Support is provided to employees facing
difficult circumstances, with assistance for those
with children in daycare, travel expenses, and
transportation support.

» Domestic and international trips are organized
for employees to help them relax and improve their
mental well-being.

» The company focuses on human resource
training, especially for senior management, and
continuously fosters and develops the skills of
employees.

» Investment is made in the infrastructure to create
a green, clean, and beautiful working environment
and to develop a corporate culture that ensures
employees feel secure and engaged with the
company.

» The Corporation has provided additional Buggy
cars and electric motorcycles to assist employees
with mobility and work-related tasks within the
company premises.

» Improvements have been made to the motorcycle
and car parking areas, landscaping has been
enhanced with more greenery around the premises,
and the coffee room space has been expanded.
The Hoa Tho supermarket has also increased its
range of fresh packaged items to meet employees’
shopping needs more quickly and conveniently.

» Free yoga and dance sports classes are offered,
along with foosball tables, ping-pong tables, and
badminton courts for employees to relax during
breaks and after work.

» Regular maintenance and repairs are carried out
to ensure the safety, cleanliness, and aesthetic
quality of the factory and office buildings.

s
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POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES (Next)

2024 Training Courses

m TRAINING COURSE NAME TRAINING UNIT

Fiber and Textile Technology Engineer

RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING POLICY

Hanoi University of Textile and Garment

Industry
(Internal)
2 Corporate Culture Deputy General Director Tran Tuong Anh
. Central Occupational Safety and Health
3 Deputy General Director Tran Tuong Anh Training and Inspection Joint Stock Company
Occupational Safety and Health Training for .
4 Group 3 and Group 6 BS| Vietnam
Awareness and Internal Auditor Training for
5 Qualit Mana%ement System according to (Internal)
ISO 9001:201
Business Communication and Situation
6 Handling Experience Hung Garment Factory
7 SmartPro Training and Consulting Joint Stock
CompTIA Security+ Company
8 Professional Business Analysis (BA) ITExpert Training Center
- Tomorrow Marketers Service Joint Stock
9 Digital Performance
Company
10 Brand Development Tomorrow Marketers Service Joint Stock
Company
. Tomorrow Marketers Service Joint Stock
11 Data Analysis
Company
12 Date Engineer Insight DATA Data An'al)./3|s Solutions
Company Limited
13 The Art of People Management VCCI
14 Power Bl Data Analyst Datapot Company Limited
Investment and Bidding Project .
15 Management Corporation
16 Commaodity Policy & Import-Export Vietnam Customs School

Commodity Specialized Management

HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES ’1

HOATHO

o) T

m TRAINING COURSE NAME TRAINING UNIT

Line Leader - Shift Leader

Ho Chi Minh City College of Industry

Labor Law — Updates on Guidance

18 Documents and Lessons Learned from VCCI
Practical Situations
19 Sales Skills and CV Implementation New Vision Company
20 Middle Management VCCI
21 Yarn Quality Control Training Ho Chi Minh City College of Industry
22 Corporate Culture for Specialists Deputy General Director Tran Tuong
Anh (Internal)
23 SA:8000 Internal Auditor BV
24 Middle Management Corporate Culture Deputy General Director Tran Tuong Anh
((Internal
25 Legal Corporation
26 Fabric Defect Analysis Le Thi Tuyet Hoa and Nguyen Thi Tram
27 Social Insurance 2024 VCCI-ITB
28 Sustainable Production and Consumption vVeel
for Manufacturing Enterprises
Common Mistakes When Preparing Social
29 Insurance Inspection Documents ATC Academy
30 Sewing Line Technical Training Ho Chi Minh City College of Industry
Capacity Building for Businesses through
31 RCEP&FPA veel
32 Soft Skills for Employees VCCI
33 Yarn Industry Bureau Project 2024 Hanoi Textile and Garment College
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SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS CONSOLIDATED NET REVENUE STRUCTURE
Unit: Million VND Unit: Million VND

2 Cost of Goods Sold 4,268,076 4,510,747 105.69%
Garment Industry 3,772,753 80.27% 4,084,717 80.05%

3 Financial Income 84,155 115,657 137.43%

Yarn Industry 927,457 19.73% 1,018,212 19.95%

| . . |
4 Generé & administration, sales, and 311,846 375199 120.32%
financial expenses

5 Profit from business activities 206,842 334,518 161.73%
. GROSS PROFIT STRUCTURE
6 Other proﬂt 3,969 18,353 462.47% Unit: Million VND
7 Profit before tax 210,811 352,872 167.39%
8 Profit after tax 169,873 282,504 166.30%

Garment Industry 417,750 96.67% 521,141 88.00%

In 2024, the global economy faced numerous difficulties and
challenges, including a global economic downturn, rising inflation,

and prolonged political instability. These objective factors Yarn Industry 14,384 3.33% 71,071 12.00%

significantly impacted the textile and garment industry, as market
demand stagnated, and orders were primarily small and fragmented
with stringent quality and delivery time requirements. Notably, during
the first six months, order values remained low, with some even
below production costs, resulting in a bleak market outlook. However,
the situation unexpectedly reversed in the latter half of the year as
some of Vietnam's textile and garment competitors, particularly
Bangladesh, faced political instability. This created an opportunity for
Vietnam, as customers shifted orders from Bangladesh, prioritizing
the Vietnamese textile and garment market.

In response to these unexpected changes, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation proactively implemented various solutions to
maintain and boost production and business activities. Specifically,
the company’s net revenue increased by 8.57% compared to 2023,
while the cost of goods sold only rose by 5.69%, indicating effective
cost control. However, increased input fabric prices from China and
higher energy costs for production exerted pressure on production
expenses. Despite this, gross profit increased significantly by 37.04%
compared to the previous year. Financial income also saw a 37.43%
compared to the previous year increase, contributing to the robust
growth of net profit from business activities, which surged by 61.73%
to 334,518 million VND, the highest profit in the company’s history.

2
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EXPORT MARKET STRUCTURE IN 2024
Unit: 1,000 USD

USA 123,594 47.20% 121,739 47.70%

Japan 52,636 20.10% 40,418 15.84%

Europe (EU 28) 35,225 13.45% 32,453 12.72%

South Korea 5,814 2.22% 3,935 1.54%

China 5,458 2.08% 5,749 2.25%

ASEAN 6,725 2.57% 6,654 2.61% . - = .

Other 32,379 12.37% 44,276 17.35% Ui\ 0\ A\ “:\m\ \":‘\ﬁa‘; \ "4‘ \ d \

, 37% , 35% A\ N\ A

N\

In 2024, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock

Corporation’s  export  market  experienced
significant fluctuations. Although the total export
value slightly decreased from 261.8 million USD
to 255.2 million USD, the proportion of exports to
key markets remained stable. Specifically, exports
to the US maintained the highest share at 47.7%,
despite a slight decrease in value compared to
2023. Conversely, exports to Japan declined sharply
from 52.6 million USD (20.1%) to 40.4 million USD

(15.84%) due to a significant drop in Japanese

import demand.

However, exports to China and other markets
showed positive growth. Exports to China increased
from 5.5 million USD (2.08%) to 5.7 million USD
(2.25%), driven by order shifts from other markets
like Bangladesh and Myanmar, which faced
production and export challenges. The “Other”
market also grew significantly, from 32.4 million
USD to 44.3 million USD, reflecting Hoa Tho's market
expansion strategy and effective utilization of Free
Trade Agreements (FTASs).

Despite the slight decrease in total export value
from 261.8 million USD to 255.2 million USD, the
proportion of key markets like the US and China
remained stable. This demonstrates the company’s
sound strategic shift in seeking and expanding new
markets, while reflecting Hoa Tho's adaptability to

fluctuations in the global economy.
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION IN 2024

Unit: Billion VND

DISBURSED
VALUE YEAR
2024

DISBURSED
VALUE YEAR

COMPLETION
TIME

TOTAL
INVESTMENT

CONTRACT
VALUE

IMPLEMENTED
VALUE 2024

COMPLETION
TIME

TOTAL
INVESTMENT

CONTRACT
VALUE

IMPLEMENTED
VALUE 2024

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT NAME

In-depth Investment
Project and

Trieu Phong
Garment Factory

2024

In

Garment Industr i
1 ) Y February 2024 8.5 7.7 7.7 7.7 Completed 6 Construction vear 2024 % 595 595 532 progress
Equipment Investment Project
Supplement - Phase - Phase 3
4,2023 Investment Project
Project: In-depth for Renovation of In
) 7 ) Year 2024 9.5 7.05 7.03 6.7
Investment in the Vest Cutting progress
Garment Industry Q2/2024 Workshop
2 ) - 50 47 47 22 Completed
Equipment and Q4/2024 Project: Investment
Technology - Phase 8 in Harmonic Wave April 2024 55 5.45 5.45 38 C leted
ri . . . . omplete
1,2024 Improvement at the P P
In-depth Investment Corporation
Project for Yarn
3 : , April 2024 18 16.1 16.1 161  Completed Rooftop Solar
Industry Equipment b s |
t n
Supplement g | owersysem Year 2024 40 29.02 28.71 21.2
Investment Project progress
In-depth Investment tthe C i
Project for Yarn at the orporation
4 Industry Equipment May 2024 472 3.28 3.28 3.28 Completed Consulting Project
Supplement Phase for Building the
2,2023 Strategy of Hoa Tho
: . Q4/2019 -
Project: In-depth 10  Textile - Garment Q4/2024 5.8 4.63 0.26 0.69 Completed
Investment in Year 2024 - Q1/ In Joint Stock
5 Q 35 18.6 16.3 14.7 .
Yarn Industry Year 2025 progress Corporation for the
Equipment period 2020-2030
Car Investment
11 Year 2024 7 6.4 6.4 6.4 Completed

f—y

Project
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FINANCIAL SITUATION IN 2024
EINANCIAL SITUATION KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
m INDICATOR UNIT mm 2024/2023 % m INDICATOR UNIT mm
Total Asset Million VND 2,507,721 2,922,216 116.53%
2 Net Revenue Million VND 4,700,210 5,102,929 108.57%
- Current Ratio times 1.22 1.17
Profit from Business .
3 - Million VND 206,842 334,518 161.73%
Activities - Quick Ratio times 0.69 0.73
4 Other Profit Million VND 3,969 18,353 462.47%
5 Profit Before Tax Million VND 210,811 352,872 167.37% _ Debt/Total Assets Ratio times 067 068
6 Profit After Tax Million VND 169,873 282,504 166.29%
- Debt/Equity Ratio times 2.00 2.16
7 EPS VND 4,444 6,634 149.29%
- Inventory Turnover turnover 5.09 5.81
- Total Asset Turnover turnover 1.91 1.88
- Profit After Tax/Net Revenue Ratio (ROS) % 3.61% 5.54%
- Return on Average Equity (ROE) % 19.55% 32.09%
- Return on Average Assets (ROA) % 6.90% 10.40%

- Operating Profit/Net Revenue Ratio % 4.40% 6.55%
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

‘ Liquidity

In 2024, HTG’s current ratio reached
1.17 times, a decrease of 0.05 times
compared to 2023. Meanwhile, the
quick ratio increased to 0.73 times,
up 0.04 times compared to the same
period. At the end of 2024, short-term
debt increased faster than short-term
assets, with a growth rate of 0.06 times.

Quick Ratio 0.73
0.69
. 1.17
Current Ratio
1.22 ) )
Specifically, short-term loans increased
by 283 billion VND, and accounts

w2024 w2023 payable increased by 44 billion VND.

This was due to the recovery of the textile and garment industry from the beginning of the fourth quarter
of 2024. After a difficult period, the textile and garment market, especially the yarn sector, showed signs
of recovery, with demand and selling prices significantly improving. Major export markets such as the US,
EU, and Japan maintained stable demand. The expansion of credit, especially short-term loans, to meet the
needs of importing goods for processing products, was a key factor in maintaining production and timely
delivery. However, the increase in debt also requires HTG to focus on cash flow management, ensuring
liquidity and the ability to pay short-term debts.

‘ Operational Capacity

In 2024, inventory turnover increased from

5.09 turns to 5.81 turns. The main reason Total Asset Turnover - 1.88
was that the cost of goods sold increased 191
by 5.49%, while the average inventory only

increased by 2.88% compared to the same 5.81
period last year, indicating that the use of Inventory Turnover - 5.09
inventory in production has become more
efficient, as revenue from goods sold is
realized more quickly, reducing inventory
holding time.

However, total asset turnover decreased from 1.91 turns to 1.88 turns. The main reason was that net revenue
in 2024 only slightly increased compared to the Corporation’s average total assets. This was mainly due to
the sharp increase in the price of raw materials, including cotton, yarn, and chemicals, leading to a significant
increase in the cost of goods sold. Although net revenue also increased, the increase was not enough to keep
pace with the increase in total assets.

Overall, the performance indicators of the Corporation in 2024 have improved in some aspects, but there
are still challenges to overcome. The Corporation also focuses on improving asset utilization efficiency and
controlling input material costs to enhance productivity and optimize profits in the following years.

2024 w2023

FINANCIAL SITUATION IN 2024 ’1
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‘ Capital Structure
In 2024, the capital structure indicators
of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint

Debt/Equity Ratio _ 2.16 Stock Corporation recorded growth
2.00 . compared to the same period last

year. Specifically, the debt-to-total

0.68 assets ratio increased from 0.67

bt/Total Assets Ratio ’ : ; -
De 0.67 times to 0.68 times (an increase of
0.01 times). The debt-to-equity ratio
E2024 ®2023 also increased from 2.00 times to

2.16 times (an increase of 0.16 times).

The increase primarily came from the Corporation’s payables, which rose by 19.59%. Payables accounted for
68% of total capital. At the same time, total assets and equity increased by 16.53% and 10.41%, respectively.
The main reason for this increase was that the Corporation took out more short-term loans to support its
production and business activities, maximizing opportunities in the market. While these ratios have increased,
they remain within reasonable levels and do not pose significant risks to the company’s financial situation.
As a company primarily engaged in manufacturing, Hoa Tho is effectively utilizing borrowed capital to
generate profits. This not only helps maintain stable production and business operations but also contributes
to increasing equity value. With the current level of debt, the Corporation is fully capable of meeting its debt
obligations and leveraging financial leverage effectively to ensure sustainable development.

‘ Profitability

Overall, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint 0peratingProﬂt/'. 6.55%
) - . Net Revenue Ratio 4.40%
Stock Corporation’s profitability in 2024

significantly improved, with key financial ros [N

indicators  showing  strong  growth.
ROE — 32.09%
19.55%

Specifically, profit after tax and profit from
Ba f3.61§/;54%

business activities increased by 66.08%
and 61.71%, respectively, far exceeding the
increase in net revenue (8.57%), average
equity (10.41%), and average total assets

(16.53%).
In 2025, the textile and garment industry, including Hoa Tho, will continue to face significant challenges from

fluctuations in tariff policies, especially from the US - a country that accounts for more than 40% of Vietnam’s
textile and garment exports. The US is currently a key market, and changes in President Donald Trump’s tariff
policies could affect the industry’s export capacity. However, with the shift of orders from China and India
to Vietnam and other countries, Hoa Tho has the opportunity to maintain its growth momentum. Vietnam
currently has a significant advantage in terms of low labor costs, only half that of China, and high product
quality, increasing its competitiveness in meeting the stringent demands of major markets like the US.

With these advantages, coupled with the ability to optimize costs and improve productivity, Hoa Tho can
maintain and improve its profitability in 2025, although the textile and garment industry still needs to cope
with risk factors from tax policies and global market fluctuations.

w2024 w2023
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SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE, CHANGE IN THE OWNER'S EQUITY

As of December 31, 2024

HOATHO

36,002,708 shares VND 360,027,080,000

Par value

Number of shares issued ﬁ Charter capital
36 002 708 shares 10 000 VND/share

" © 4
ﬁ‘ |j"3

36,002,708 shares

Number of shares
outstanding

0 shares

Number of
treasury shares

* . ¥
O O

_

SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE, CHANGE IN THE OWNER'S EQUITY ’1

SUBJECT

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

NUMBER OF

OWNERSHIP
PERCENTAGE/

NUMBER OF

HOATHO

As of December 25, 2024

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

SHARES CHARTER SHAREHOLDERS
Major
Shareholder 22,274,205 61.87% 1 1 0
Domestic 22,274,205 61.87% 1 1 0
Foreign 0 0% 0 0 0
(T::’a";Z‘L"r:'izn 424,629 1.18% 2 2 0
Domestic 424,629 1.18% 2 2 0
Foreign 0 0% 0 0 0
Other 13,303,874 36.95% 2,962 7 2,955
Domestic 13,296,059 36.93% 2,956 5 2,951
Foreign 7,815 0.02% 6 2 4
36,002,708 9
Domestic 35,994,893 99.98% 2,959 8 2,951
Foreign 7,815 0.02% 6 2 4

LIST OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
As of December 25, 2024

OWNERSHIP RATIO/

NAME ADDRESS CHARTER CAPITAL (%)

NUMBER OF SHARES

Leadvisors Place Building -
41A Ly Thai To, Hoan Kiem 22,274,205 61.870%
District, Hanoi, Vietham

Vietnam Textile and Garment
Group

CHANGES IN OWNER'S INVESTMENT CAPITAL  None

TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS  None

OTHER SECURITIES None



/

HOATHO

._.-. s | iswly

.._u_. T

kR RS EEE SR REERRER

e
41 u.““..:

lgisassiineiis




Reports of
the Board Of
Management

ANNUAL 2024

REPORT

ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS

Analysis of the
Company'’s overall
operations

However, the textile and garment industry also
faces many challenges, especially the shortage
of raw materials for production. These new FTAs
set strict requirements for the origin of goods,
including yarn, and fabric onwards. This makes it
difficult for the Vietnamese textile and garment
industry to meet these standards, as Vietnam is
still importing a large number of raw materials,
especially fibre and fabric, from countries like
China.

For Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation, primarily processing under CMT and
FOB level 1 methods means that the main raw
material — fabric — accounts for 80% of the material
structure and must be imported as specified by
customers, with approximately 89% of it imported
from China. Auxiliary materials such as zippers,
lining fabric, buttons, etc., account for 20% of the
material structure and are actively purchased by

In 2024, the global economy faced many difficulties and challenges,
but the Vietnamese textile and garment industry maintained many
important advantages, especially thanks to the fact that 17 out of
19 new-generation Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) have taken effect.
This is a great opportunity, opening up large markets for Vietnamese
textiles and garments, helping to increase exports and creating many
opportunities for international cooperation.

HTG from domestic and foreign suppliers. This
also creates pressure to meet requirements for
origin and transparency in the supply chain.
Despite facing difficulties with raw materials and
increasingly stringent requirements from FTAs,
the Corporation still achieved great success in
2024 thanks to the close direction of the Vietnam
Textile and Garment Group’s leadership and the
Corporation’s Board of Directors. The determination
and flexibility of the Board of Directors, along with
the creativity of the units and the unity of the staff,
helped the Corporation achieve its production and
business targets.

ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS '1

HOATHO

Unit: Million VND

Net Revenue 4,700,210 5,102,929 108.57%
2 Cost of Goods Sold 4,268,076 4,510,747 105.69%
3 Financial Income 84,155 115,657 137.43%
G | & administrati I d finan-
4 .enera administration, sales, and finan 311,846 375199 120.32%
cial expenses
5 Profit from Business Activities 206,842 334,518 161.71%
6 Other Profit 3,969 18,353 462.41%
7 Profit Before Tax 210,811 352,872 167.39%
8 Profit After Tax 169,873 282,504 166.30%
PLAN
INDICATOR UNIT 2024 2023 IM. | 2024 IM. | 2024/2024 | 2024/2023
1 Net Revenue VND 4,500 4,700 5,103 113% 109%
,  Export Million 247 262 255 103% 97%
Turnover usD
g  SeparatePre VND 220 220 343 156% 156%
tax Profit
4  Consolidated VND 220 211 353 160% 167%

Pre-tax Profit
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SOME KEY INDICATORS

up 9% compared to 2023
1 billion VND

5,103

CONSOLIDATED
NET REVENUE

achieving 114% of the 2024 plan
N ¢ e

up 9% compared to 2023
N
billion VND

4,762

SEPARATE
NET REVENUE

achieving 116% of the 2024 plan
& L pan)

up 67% compared to 2023
billion VND

353

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT

achieving 153% of the 2024 plan

Garmen

Yarn

Garmen

Yarn

billion VND

1 '01 8 up 10% compared to 2023

billion VND

713 up11% compared to 2023

up 50% compared to 2023
billion VND

343

SEPARATE PROFIT

achieving 150% of the 2024 plan )

ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS 'I

HOATHO

million VND/person/month

AVERAGE INCOME 1092
’ achieving 103% of the 2024 plan
TOTAL SEPARATE TOTA CONSOLIDATED
REPORT LABOR REPORT LABOR
employees employees

down 5% compared to the end
77 9,631
) )

TOTAL DEPRECIATION BUDGET CONTRIBUTION
OF THE CORPORATION
billion VND billion VND
up 2% compared to 2023 up 3% compared to 2023
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FINANCIAL SITUATION IN 2024

ASSET SITUATION
Unit: Million VND

ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS ’,l’

HOATHO

PAYABLES STATUS
Unit: Million VND

2023 2024 INCREASE/DECREASE
INDICATOR
Current Assets 1,761,376 70.24% 2,095,059 71.69% 333,684 18.94%
Non-current 746,345 29.76% 827,153 28.31% 80,807 10.83%
Assets
29.76% _, 28.31%
- 70.21% \- 70.69%
= Current = Non-current = Current =" Non-current
Assets Assets Assets Assets

The Corporation’s total assets in 2024 increased by 16.53% compared to the same period last year, reaching
2,922.2 billion VND.

In which, short-term assets increased by 18.94%, equivalent to 333,684 million VND. Specifically, cash and
cash equivalents recorded an increase of 121.40%, reaching 467,128 million VND. Short-term receivables
decreased by 1.4%, as the company collected debts and controlled receivables, maintaining good liquidity
and readiness to meet short-term financial needs.

Besides, long-term assets recorded a growth of 10.83%, mainly from investment in fixed assets. The
company continues to focus on investing in modern machinery and equipment and expanding production
with large projects such as phase 3 of the Trieu Phong project and upgrading the Veston workshop, etc.
These investments help the company improve production capacity and prepare for future expansion
opportunities.

Regarding asset structure, the proportion of short-term assets in total assets slightly increased from 70.24%
to 71.69%. Inventory accounts for 26.97% of total assets. Over the past year, the Corporation continued to
maintain a high ratio of short-term assets to ensure financial flexibility, readiness to respond to market
fluctuations, and support timely business decisions.

2023 2024 INCREASE/DECREASE
INDICATOR
Short-term debt 1,441,465 86.27% 1,790,077 89.58% 348,612 24.18%
Long-term debt 229,450 13.73% 208,175 10.42% (21,275) (9.27%)
10.42%
13.73%

2024

\ 86.27% \_ 89.58%

= Short-term = Long-term | Short-term » Long-term
debt debt debt debt

Total payables in 2024 increased by 19.59% compared to 2023, reaching 1,998,251 million VND. Short-term
debt continues to account for a large proportion of the Corporation’s debt structure, accounting for 89.58%, or
1,790,077 million VND, a 24.18% increase compared to the same period last year. The increase in short-term
debt mainly comes from short-term borrowings. Short-term borrowings increased by 283,441 million VND,
reaching 926,130 million VND, a 44.10% increase compared to last year, to finance legitimate, reasonable,
and legal credit needs to serve the Corporation’s production and business activities.

The Corporation’s long-term debt decreased compared to the same period last year, from 229,450 million
VND to 208,175 million VND. The main reason is the decrease in long-term loans and financial leases by
18,788 million VND, bringing the proportion of long-term debt down to 10.39% of total payables.

It can be seen that in 2024, the Corporation increased short-term debt and decreased the proportion of
long-term debt in the debt structure. This demonstrates the flexibility in the Corporation’s capital structure,
reducing the burden of interest expense. In general, the debt structure of textile and garment enterprises has
a very large proportion of short-term debt.

&1
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HOATHO

IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT ) ' ! -

governance to meet the requirements of sustainable development and international integration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE h, - F
i o | . e

/- - -TT-TTTTTTTETsSTTETSTEESTTESTESTEESITESEIESSIEESAIEEEIEETEEEEE TR R A EE T N i ‘;& . —
In 2024, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation continued to improve corporate - - h\i-

The Corporation always strictly complies with legal regulations, the Charter, and internal regulations
during its operations. Resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
the Board of Directors are fully and timely implemented, ensuring transparency and stability in
management.

In addition, the Corporation also focuses on implementing the strategic goals set out in the
2021-2030 period, especially the application of information technology, digitalization, and digital
transformation in corporate governance. The implementation of this strategy, aligned with modern
technology trends, has initially helped the Corporation enhance its competitiveness, optimize
production and business activities, and significantly reduce operational errors.

In 2024, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation restructured its products and
customers for both the yarn and garment sectors, further expanded the market in Europe, and
prepared conditions to maximize the advantages from Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) such as
EVFTA, KVFTA, CPTPP, and RCEP that Vietnam has signed and participated in. This is one of the
important strategies to help Hoa Tho consolidate and expand its market and increase exports in
the context of increasingly fierce international competition.

Forthe garment sector, the Corporation continues to research and expand new markets by assessing
customer needs and developing suitable products. Customer care policies are implemented to
ensure customer benefits and maintain sustainable relationships with customers.

In the textile industry, the Corporation adjusted production and implemented contingency plans
to promptly respond to continuous changes. The Corporation also invested in market research,
demand forecasting, and production process optimization to enhance sales and production
efficiency.

Notably, the Corporation’s product research and development efforts were enhanced through
investmentinthe Product Research and Development Center, strengthening creativity and improving
market performance. Furthermore, the Corporation focused on developing the domestic fashion
market and promoting e-commerce activities to expand the market and create breakthroughs in
the domestic fashion industry.

The Corporation actively exploited opportunities and maintained good customer relationships,
evident in the high appreciation and trust from customers through surveys and positive feedback.

>
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In 2024, the focus continued on improving production processes
and quality management to enhance operational efficiency and
meet stringent customer requirements. Both the Textile and
Garment sectors strictly adhered to the production processes and
quality management standards issued by the Corporation. Many
factories performed well in social responsibility, enhanced customer
service quality, and proactively improved labor productivity. This led
to increased productivity in most factories compared to the same
period.

However, some units still need further improvement, especially in
controlling and enhancing production and quality management
systems to meet increasing customer demands. In 2024, the
Corporation focused on building and completing standard factories,
aiming to achieve smart factory standards for both the Textile and
Garment sectors. Focus was placed on deploying and thoroughly
implementing standardized processes for production and quality
management systems to maintain quality stability, increase
productivity, and minimize risks.

Besides, improving customer service quality and productivity at
factories has always been a top priority for the Corporation. In
particular, the Corporation strengthened its modern production
system and technical personnel capable of effectively managing
production organization, ensuring product quality, creating
competitive prices, and satisfying customers. All these efforts
contributed to enhancing the prestige of the Hoa Tho brand, providing
a solid foundation for the business department in exploiting orders
and expanding the market.
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IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT

(Next)

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
has promptly issued regimes, policies, processes,
and regulations to ensure effective human
resource management. Training activities are also
maintained, closely coordinating with training
centers to organize skill-enhancement courses
for employees, thereby helping them improve their
skills and professional qualifications.

In addition, the Corporation also pays great
attention to the material and spiritual life of
employees, ensuring unity and consensus in
production and business activities. Activities to
care for employees’ lives are always maintained
and developed, helping to create a united and
cohesive working environment. The Corporation
always focuses on communication to build and
maintain a strong image, reputation, and brand.
The company’s core messages and values are
always clearly and consistently conveyed to
each employee, helping them understand and
accompany the Corporation.

Along with full and timely salary, bonus, and
benefit policies, the Corporation also implements
effective communication so that employees
always feel connected and share the company’s
common goals. The work of personnel transfer,
appointment, and organizational restructuring is
also carried out promptly, helping to consolidate
the organizational structure and ensure the
effective operation of the units. The Corporation
always strives to care for the health of employees,
continuing to maintain and improve the quality of
human resources to meet the increasingly high
demands of the market.

< o

~ o N\

INVESTMENT IN DEVELOPMENT,
APPLICATION OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
implemented several important steps to ensure
an effective digital transformation process.
The Corporation not only applied information
technology extensively to its operations but
also invested heavily in solar power systems
for production, contributing to environmental
protection and reducing energy costs. This is a
significant effort to enhance the sustainability of
production activities and ensure efficient energy
use.

In addition, the Corporation also promoted
research and investment in highly automated
machinery and equipment to save on human
resource costs, maximize the capabilities of
automated equipment, avoid waste, and ensure
optimal production efficiency. This not only
increases productivity but also contributes to
reducing production costs in the long term.
However, duringthedigitaltransformationprocess,
despite achieving significant accomplishments,
the Corporation still faces some difficulties,
especially in deploying application software. Due
to the large workload, some application software
deployments have not been completed in a timely
manner compared to the set requirements and
objectives. Nevertheless, the Corporation always
focuses on cybersecurity management and data
security, ensuring information security throughout
the entire system. The Corporation commits to
continuing to improve and optimize technology
applications to effectively serve production and
business activities.

IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT "li

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

The Corporation always ensures sufficient
funds for strategic activities and projects, while
maintaining management accounting that is
updated and reported regularly every month.
Financial indicators, costs, and production and
business efficiency are analyzed and evaluated
promptly to make necessary adjustments to
optimize resources and improve operational
efficiency.

The Corporation’s financial and accounting
operations are continuously improved by
strengthening cash flow management and
effective financial balancing. The Corporation
always proactively controls financial indicators,
ensuring safe and sustainable financial resources
to cope with unpredictable fluctuations in the
global and domestic economic situation, while
maintaining stable and sustainable development.
In addition, the effective use of long-term and short-
term loans is also focused on by the Corporation
to ensure a balanced cash flow to serve production
and business activities and support for employees.
Dividend payments, salary, and bonus payments
to employees are always made on time, helping to
maintain employee engagement and motivation.

HOATHO

OTHER OPERATIONS

Risk management and internal control are
enhanced to minimize and prevent risks
in production and business activities. The
Corporation also constantly builds and enhances
the value of the Hoa Tho brand, strengthens a
strong corporate culture, creating a foundation for
the long-term development of the company.

Political security and social order and safety are
consistently maintained, with special attention
to fire prevention and fighting (FPF). FPF work
is regularly inspected and monitored at member
units to promptly detect and address potential
risks, ensuring a safe working environment.

Environmental protection, flood prevention,
and food safety are always prioritized by the
Corporation, aiming to create a clean, safe, and
environmentally friendly workplace. Occupational
safety, security, and environmental protection
indicators are closely monitored and controlled to

maintain stability and development.
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BUSINESS AND PRODUCTION PLAN FOR 2025

PLAN 2025/

PLAN 2025 ACTUAL 2024

ACTUAL 2024

INDICATOR UNIT
Net revenue VND billion
Export turnover Million USD
Separate pre-tax VND billion
profit
Consolidated pre-tax VND billion

profit

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTION PLAN FOR 2025 ’.lI

Solution for plan completion

» Continue focusing on market development,
exploring and diversifying export markets to mitigate
risks from U.S. protectionist policies. Seek and
expand raw material sources from other countries
and develop domestic supply through linkages
with textile dyeing units to limit risks from global
geopolitical and economic impacts.

» Focus on researching and defining the operational
model and development direction of the Product
Development Research Center to proactively
take the initiative in design, sample development,
material procurement, and completing the internal
OEM chain to increase the value of garments and
enhance the Corporation’s competitiveness in the
face of increasingly stringent market demands.

» Promote the implementation of information
technology application programs, digitization, and
move towards comprehensive digital transformation
of all activities from production to business to
enhance management capacity and innovate the
system through digital transformation.

» Focus on implementing recruitment, training,
innovation, and policy improvement programs
to attract and retain a workforce that meets the
Corporation’s production and business needs.
Recruitment and training must be linked to workforce
planning to prepare a source of middle and senior
management personnel for the Corporation for the
next 10-15 year strategic period.

» Continue  implementing the  Corporation’s
investment projects, especially solar energy system
investments, domestic wastewater recycling, and
in-depth investment projects oriented towards new

HOATHO

technologies and solutions to meet production
and business needs and the Corporation’s green
transition.

» Further promote the Corporation’s financial and
accounting work, ensuring cash flow balance for
production and business activities and securing
financial resources to overcome unpredictable
global and domestic developments.

» Focus on internal audit and risk management to
identify potential risks and promptly detect critical
risks to ensure the Corporation’s operations are
safe, transparent, and efficient.

» Regularly review, amend, and supplement the
Corporation’s internal regulations to ensure they
are consistent with operational realities and
comply with current legal regulations. Regularly
monitor compliance with issued business
processes to ensure adherence to regulations of
competent authorities, limiting errors that affect
the Corporation’s reputation and effectiveness.

» Coordinate with union organizations to promote
emulation movements in production and labor,
focusing on taking care of the material and
spiritual lives of employees, especially during
holidays and festivals.

» Continue to pay attention to and effectively
implement security, environmental protection, fire
prevention and fighting, explosion prevention, and
food safety throughout the Corporation.

» Continue implementing communication
programs to disseminate and promote the
corporate culture of the Corporation.
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ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE TEXTILE INDUSTRY

In 2024, the Vietnamese textile and garmentindus-  EU, and Japan was a crucial factor in maintaining
try faced numerous challenges amidst a declining ~ growth momentum. Specifically, according to infor-
global economy and intense competition from ma- mation from the General Department of Customs, by
jor exporting countries. However, the industry still  the end of 2024, textile and garment exports reached

maintained some positive results. By the end of 37.04 billion USD, an 11.2% increase (equivalent to
2024, textile and garment export turnover reached @ 3.72 billion USD increase) compared to 2023. Of
44 billion USD, an 11% increase compared to 2023.  which, exports to the US reached 16.15 billion USD,
Despite facing many difficulties, the Vietnamese  up 11.6%; Japan reached 4.33 billion USD, up 6.7%;
textile and garment industry maintained stability =~ the EU (27 countries) reached 4.32 billion USD, up
thanks to product quality improvements, increased ~ 12.2%; and South Korea reached 3.15 billion USD, up
productivity, and export market expansion. 3.3% compared to the previous year. In addition, new
The recovery from major markets such as the US, markets such as the Middle East and Africa also con-
tributed positively to export growth.

However, the Vietnamese textile and garment industry still faces significant challenges from US tariff pol-
icies, potential changes in consumer behavior, and fierce competition from other rivals. Nevertheless, with
the support of free trade agreements like RCEP and EVFTA, Vietnam still has opportunities to expand market
share and enhance competitiveness in 2025.

Therefore, textile and garment enterprises, especially Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation,
need to continue improving product quality, enhancing productivity, capitalizing on opportunities from trade
agreements, and developing new products to maintain and promote sustainable growth in an increasingly
competitive environment.

HOI NGHI1
TONG KET HOAT DONG SAN KUAT Kith DOANH NAM 2024,
TRIEN KHAI KE HOACH, CHUONG TRINH HANH DONE NAM 2025

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ’.lI

HOATHO

ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Company Operations

The Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation highly appreciates the
efforts and achievements that the Corporation has accomplished in 2024. Despite the numerous
difficulties faced by the global and domestic economies, the Corporation has strived to overcome
challenges and maintain stable development, achieving the set targets.

Financial managementwas carried out effectively,ensuring resources for production and investment.
The Corporation also focused on improving labor productivity, enhancing product quality, and taking
care of the material and spiritual life of employees. In addition, risk control and environmental
protection activities were also seriously implemented, contributing to the sustainable development
of the company. The Corporation will continue to promote the achieved results while strengthening
innovation and technology application to meet market demands in the following years.

Activities of the Board of Management

In 2024, the Board of Management demonstrated excellence in directing and managing production
and business activities, ensuring that all financial and production targets were met and exceeded.
The Board of Management's flexibility and proactiveness in facing market challenges and promptly
seizing opportunities have helped the company maintain stability and development. Financial man-
agement, resource coordination, and production monitoring were carried out rigorously, contributing
to improved efficiency and protecting shareholder interests. The Board of Directors acknowledges
the significant achievements of the Board of Management and has full confidence in their ability to
maintain and enhance operational efficiency in the coming years.

Weekly and monthly, the Board of Directors closely monitored the Board of Management’s activities
through direct meetings with production units, professional departments, and through the activi-
ties of the Corporation’s Internal Audit Board. After each monitoring period, the Board of Directors
promptly requested the General Director to implement solutions to address existing issues, promote
production, and enhance business efficiency at member units. The Board of Directors highly appre-
ciates the solidarity, responsibility, and scientific working style of the Board of Management, while
acknowledging the strong determination of the team in fully implementing the strategic tasks and
resolutions set forth by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

F‘
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ORIENTATION FOR 2025

AT
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In 2025, the Board of Directors will continue to focus on strengthening
management, supervision, and support for the Board of Management in achieving
the Corporation’s strategic objectives.

Specifically, the Board of Directors will continue to hold regular meetings to
hear reports and recommendations from the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board, discuss and approve financial reports, proposals, projects,
plans, and policies related to the Corporation’s production and business activities.
In addition, the Board of Directors will hold unscheduled meetings when necessary
to address arising issues, ensuring timely decisions on important matters in the
company’s operations, in accordance with the provisions of the Corporation’s
Charter.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors will also focus on developing long-term
development orientations, implementing strategic tasks, deciding on projects
and other matters within the Board of Directors’ authority, contributing to the

effective implementation of the production and business plan.

SITUATION ASSESSMENT

In the context of the Government's policy of
streamlining the administrative apparatus, the merger
and restructuring of state agencies, especially
the State Securities Commission (SSC), will bring
about significant changes in management and
legal processes, affecting businesses, particularly
in share issuance, securities trading, and corporate
governance. One of the direct impacts on businesses
is the change in relevant legal procedures and
registration processes with the SSC. When agencies
are streamlined, processes may become simpler and
more flexible, but at the same time, businesses will
be required to constantly update information, comply
with new regulations, and adapt quickly to changes.
Public companies, especially listed companies such
as Hoa Tho, need to focus on improving their corporate
governance systems and enhancing transparency, as
a simple yet effective management system will help
reduce the cost and time for compliance, facilitating
share issuance and capital mobilization activities.

In terms of opportunities, in 2025, the
Vietnamese textile and garment industry will
face a combination of influencing factors, in
which the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP) and US tariff policies will
play important roles. The RCEP agreement
brings many opportunities for the Vietnamese
textile and garment industry by reducing tariffs
and promoting trade liberalization among
member countries, especially in the Asia-
Pacific region. This helps Vietnamese textile
and garment enterprises easily access large
markets such as China, Japan, South Korea,
and ASEAN, expanding export opportunities
and growth. The reduction of tariffs in the
region also helps the Vietnamese textile and
garment industry compete more effectively
with other countries in the RCEP, especially
when competitors like China and India have
strong textile and garment production bases.

However, while RCEP presents market expansion opportunities, Vietnam'’s textile and garment industry still

faces significant challenges from U.S. tariff policies. The U.S., a key export market for Vietnamese textiles, may
maintain or even increase import tariffs on textiles from Vietnam. This will directly impact the competitiveness
of Vietnamese textile products in the U.S. market, as high tariffs can reduce the attractiveness of Viethamese
products compared to competitors, especially those benefiting from tariff preferences under other free trade
agreements.

Although some orders have shifted from countries like China, Bangladesh, and Myanmar to Vietnam, most
of these are low-value orders, requiring the Vietnamese textile and garment industry to focus on improving
product quality, increasing productivity, and applying new technologies in production, while maximizing the
advantages of RCEP to develop new markets and increase exports to countries within the region.
Additionally, another challenge is the continued low export prices for textiles, despite the recovery in demand
from major markets like the U.S., EU, and Japan. This means Vietnamese textile companies face low profit
margins and fierce competition from other countries. Furthermore, Bangladesh'’s strong recovery in exports
to the U.S. and EU, expected to re-emerge from Q2/2025, will create further competitive pressure on Vietnam.
However, in the short term, from now until the end of Q2/2025, the textile and garment industry will maintain
its recovery momentum thanks to improvements in major markets and the trend of increasing consumer
demand, along with a sharp reduction in inventory. To capitalize on opportunities and overcome challenges,
Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation needs to continue improving product quality, enhancing
productivity, and promoting the application of new technologies in production. At the same time, continuing
to explore and develop new markets and maintain strong relationships with traditional partners is essential
to ensure the sustainable development of the business.
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Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation (HTG) always recognizes
the importance of sustainable development for the long-term prosperity of the
business. Sustainable development is not only about meeting present needs

but also about protecting the ability to meet the needs of future generations.
We are committed to implementing a sustainable development strategy by
harmoniously combining economic growth goals with social responsibility and
environmental protection.

HTG recognizes that to ensure long-term development, we need to harmoniously
combine three important factors: economic growth, social responsibility, and
environmental protection. Each of these elements is inseparable and closely
related to ensuring benefits for all stakeholders: shareholders, investors,
customers, business partners, state management agencies, employees, and the
community.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT "li

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Throughout its operations, HTG has always focused
on the goal of sustainable development through
stable, sustainable, and responsible economic
growth. Economic growth must always go hand in
hand with development that benefits society and
protects the environment.

HTG always strives to maximize profits in its
production and business activities. We implement
effective production strategies, reduce costs,
increase investment in advanced technologies, and
improve product quality. At the same time, HTG
always maintains transparency in its financial and
production activities to build strong trust from the
community and shareholders.

HOATHO

HTG is committed to ensuring stable employment
for its employees and focuses on developing
their capabilities through training and career
development programs. Caring for the physical and
mental well-being of employees is a key factor in
maintaining the company’s stability and growth.
Wealwaysprioritizetheinterestsofourshareholders.
We are committed to paying dividends on time,
ensuring long-term benefits for shareholders, and
pursuing sustainable development to maintain
share value and generate stable profits.

At the same time, we continuously improve
production processes and enhance product quality
to expand the market, seek new customers, and
maintain strong relationships with long-term
partners.




Sustainable
ANNUAL 2024 | Development

REPORT Report

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

HTG recognizes that the support and trust of

the community and society are crucial for the
Corporation’s sustainable development. Therefore,
HTG is always ready to accompany the community
through charitable programs, contributing to funds
for the poor, supporting disadvantaged children,
and social organizations. HTG consistently creates
opportunities for local families and individuals
to improve their lives by generating employment
opportunities  and

supporting  community

development initiatives

CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITY

HTG always aims for mutual benefit and customer
satisfaction.

» Continuously improves product quality through
technological advancements, new product
research and development, and production process
optimization. Listens to and acknowledges all
customer feedback for better service.

» Strengthens technical capacity, improves science
and technology, enhances product quality and
competitiveness to best meet customer needs.

» Committed to providing high-quality, stable, and
sustainable apparel products.

» Prioritize customer prosperity,asthe Corporation’s
success stems from customer satisfaction and

prosperity.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT ’.11

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

HTG understands that a business is a part of the
economy and an active subject in society. Therefore,
environmental responsibility is not just about ethical
obligations or image value but is a fundamental
and inherent responsibility. Thus, environmental
responsibility should be considered the Corporation’s
responsibility to itself.

» HTG always fully complies with environmental
protection laws. The company strictly implements
preventive measures and responds to environmental
incidents. We are also committed to reporting
and disclosing environmental activities to ensure
transparency in our environmental protection efforts.
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TONG CONG TY

HOATHO

» Continuously improves production processes
to minimize negative environmental impacts.
The company conducts inspections and applies
improvement measures, ensuring products meet
environmental protection standards such as
reducing emissions and using resources efficiently.
» Implements solutions to prevent and treat
wastewater,as well asto address any environmental
incidents. Proactively manages the collection,
transportation, and treatment of hazardous waste
to protect the environment and public health.

» Focuses on saving clean water and energy
while improving processes to minimize waste,
wastewater, and emissions from production
activities. The company also actively promotes
and raises employee awareness of environmental
protection.
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RESPONSIBILITY TO SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders are the true owners of the

Corporation; therefore, HTG's responsibility is
not only to generate sustainable profits but also
to protect and enhance the reputation of those
who have trusted and invested in the company.
Furthermore, potential investors play a crucial role
in the Corporation’s growth and expansion strategy,
contributing to its long-term and sustainable
development. To maintain shareholder trust and
attract investors, HTG consistently sets clear
objectives and transparent strategies to achieve
long-term benefits for all stakeholders:

» Continuously aim to optimize dividend payments
to provide long-term and stable benefits for
shareholders.

» Commit to ensuring maximum transparency in
providing information to shareholders, including
financial reports, development plans, and critical
company decisions, ensuring maximum and
equitable benefits for all shareholders, including
minority shareholders, to build solid trust.

» Commit that all Corporation activities ensure
shareholder benefits and future value.

PATHOTBONG CO DONG THUONG NIE
NAM 2024
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH BUSINESS PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

» In Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Corporation’s
operations, business partners and suppliers
play a crucial role in promoting the Corporation’s
sustainable development and economic growth.
HTG is always aware that close cooperation and
unity between the Corporation and its partners
not only benefit both sides but also contribute to
creating the best quality products for society.

» Maintain sustainable cooperative relationships,
supporting each other to create quality products,
meeting market demands and bringing high value
to the community.

» Consistently build and maintain partnerships
with domestic and international suppliers based
on principles of friendliness, mutual respect, and
harmonizing the interests of both parties for long-
term development.

» HTG encourages and promotes healthy competition
among suppliers based on criteria of intellect,
advanced technology, and product quality, helping
to improve production efficiency and optimize the
supply process.

» Act fairly in supplier selection, based on records of
capacity, reputation in cooperation, and proven past
experience.
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RESPONSIBILITY TO EMPLOYEES

The Corporation’s most important and core asset is its employees. HTG understands that employee income

and benefits are a measure of the company’s sustainable development value. The working environment at
Hoa Tho is always built on the principles of mutual respect and professionalism to encourage employee
engagement, dedication, and long-term cooperation. The company not only creates career opportunities but
also cares for the material and spiritual lives of its employees, aiming to retain and attract experienced and
highly skilled talent. To maintain sustainable development in production and business activities, Hoa Tho
commits to ensuring the following factors

» Employees are entitled to leave, holidays, and Tet as prescribed by the State, ensuring their
rights to rest and regenerate their workforce.

» The Corporation provides adequate protective equipment and tools, strictly adhering to safety
standards and requirements during labor and production processes.

» Develop salary, bonus, and benefit policies appropriate to the capacity and contribution of each
employee, helping to maintain a positive work spirit and retain highly qualified individuals.

» Ensure occupational safety and hygiene, fire and explosion prevention, food safety and hygiene,
and epidemic prevention. The company organizes training to prevent occupational diseases such
as spinal degeneration, provides health care consulting, cancer screening for employees, and
organizes gatherings such as the Traditional Tet holiday to strengthen solidarity within the em-
ployee community.
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MANAGEMENT OF RAW MATERIALS AND ENERGY CONSUMPTION . 7V i
IN THE YEAR | il

ENERGY CONSUMPTION SITUATION IN THE YEAR

1 Direct energy consumption, TOE 15,353
2 Indirect energy consumption, TOE 35
3  Solar power 3,166,467

WATER CONSUMPTION SITUATION IN THE YEAR

u CONTENT DETAILED CONTENT
1

Water supply Tap water

2  Water usage, m3 393,216

QUAN LY NGUON NHIEN LIEU

CONTENT DETAILED CONTENT

- For the Garment industry:

+ Main fabric: 11,712,441 meters.
+ Lining fabric: 6,802,822 meters.
+ Felt, mix fabric: 968,406 meters.
+ Interlining: 3,864,847 meters.

+ Cotton: 637,605 meters.

+ Glue: 1,751,473 meters

- For the Yarn industry:

+ Cotton: 9,501,419 kg.

+ Fiber: 9,919,474 kg

1 Total quantity of materials used

2 Percentage of recycled materials 10%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FULL NAME POSITION

HTG SHAREHOLDING
(31/12/2024)

NUMBER OF SHARES

OWNERSHIP
PERCENTAGE

Chairman of the Board

1 Mr. Nguyen Van Hai of Directors 142,056 0.39%

2 Mr.Nguyen Ngoc Binh  Member of the Board 273,171 0.76%
of Directors

3 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri Me”.‘ber of the Board 1,123,185 3.12%
of Directors

4  Ms. Tran Tuong Anh Me”.‘ber of the Board 236,019 0.66%
of Directors
Independent Member

5 Mr. Le Quoc An of the Board of 30,480 0.08%
Directors

BUSINESS PRODUCTION RESULTS IN 2024

In 2024, amidst numerous challenges faced by the textile
industry from both micro and macro factors, Hoa Tho
Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation has made
continuous efforts, proactively adapted, and achieved
positive results. Net revenue for the year 2024 reached
VND 5,103 billion, with export turnover totaling USD 255
million, meeting the targets set by the General Meeting
of Shareholders. This achievement not only solidified the
Corporation's strong position in the international market
but also enhanced its reputation within the industry.
Key financial indicators, including profits from
production and business activities, have significantly

improved, demonstrating the effectiveness of the

._La

Corporation's management and operations, as well as
its flexibility in adapting to changing market conditions.
Despite intense competition and fluctuations in the
global economy, the Corporation has maintained steady
growth and continued to generate remarkable results.
This success is due to the close guidance of the
leadership of the Vietnam Textile and Garment Group,
the determination and continuous efforts of the
Corporation’s leadership team, and the understanding
and shared responsibility of all employees. The
Corporation has achieved its set business production
goals and contributed to the overall success of the

Vietnam Textile and Garment Group in 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS "li
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ACTIVITIES OF SUB-COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Corporation has an Internal Audit Department
(formerly the Internal Control Department) under
the Board of Directors, which conducts internal
audits of the Corporation’s activities. In 2024, the
Internal Control Department’s activities essentially
completed the main contents according to the
plan approved by the Board of Directors, focusing
on enhancing the quality of internal audit work.
Besides compliance audits on accounting and
financial status, and analyzing unit performance
efficiency, the internal audit work also expanded to
operational audits. Through audits, the Internal Audit
Department also proposed that the Corporation’s

Board of Management pay attention to directing the
rectification of existing shortcomings in the units
to contribute to strengthening the Corporation’s
internal control system, making it increasingly
tighter and more effective.

The Board of Directors’ activities are based on
the principle of members discussing, deliberating,
and agreeing on decisions regarding strategic
development direction, investment, organizational
structure, and compensation to guide the
General Director, the Board of Management, and
management personnel in their implementation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES IN 2024

Following the Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM), the Board
of Directors (BOD) proactively developed quarterly
and annual action plans, assigning specific tasks
to each member to comprehensively monitor and
inspect all production and business activities of the
Corporation. In addition, the BOD directed the Board
of Management to implement the Resolutions of
the AGM and the BOD, ensuring the organization
and proper execution of the assigned tasks.

Quarterly, the BOD holds meetings to evaluate the

results of production and business activities in

the period, identifying completed tasks as well as
shortcomings that need to be addressed. From
there, the BOD develops plans and proposes
specific solutions for implementation in the next
quarter, aiming to achieve the important targets
assigned by the Annual AGM Resolution for 2024.
These meetings not only help accurately assess
work progress but also create conditions for timely
adjustments, ensuring the Corporation achieves its
set goals.

In addition to regular meetings, the BOD decides
on the Corporation’s policy orientations through
written opinions.
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In 2024, the Board of Directors held 30 meetings. All in-person meetings of the Board of Directors complied
RESOLUTION/ APPROVAL

DECISION NO.

ith th lati fthel he Ch fth ion.
with the regulations of the law and the Charter of the Corporation CONTENTS

RATE

NUMBER OF MEETINGS

Approval of the Credit Limit at Commercial Joint

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF - 9
DIRECTORS ATTENDED BY BOARD OF ATTENDANCE RATE 12 12/NQ-HDQT  24/05/2024 Stock Bank 100%
DIRECTORS 13 13/NQ-HPQT  24/05/2024 éfopcf\gn(l:f the Credit Limit at Commercial Joint 100%
1 Mr. Nguyen Van Hai 30 100%
- 14 15/NQHPQT  11/06/2024 Approval of the policy on advance payment of 2024 100%
2 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh 30 100% dividends to shareholders °
3 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri 30 100% 15 16/NQ-HDQT  27/06/2024 POVl % the POUOY o0 depth invesiment N 009,
4  Ms. Tran Tuong Anh 30 100% 16 17/NQ-HPQT  03/07/2024 Approval of the policy on in-depth investment in 100%
garment industry equipment
5  Mr.Le Quoc An 30 100% Evaluation of production and business performance
17  18/NQ-HBPQT 16/07/2024 in the first six months of 2024 and implementation of 100%
RESOLUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS the plan for the last six months of 2024
In 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation issued the following resolutions: 18 19/NQHPQT  16/07/2024 Approval of the credit limit at the Commercial Joint 100%
Stock Bank ’
RESOLUTION/ APPROVAL ) Approval of the Credit Limit at the Commercial Joint
DECISION NO CONTENTS - 19  20/NQ-HDBQT  29/07/2024 Stock Bank 100%
. i Approval of the policy on divestment from Central o
1 01/NQ-HPQT  04/01/2024 Policy on Paying Brokerage Commissions to 100% 20 21/NQ-HPQT  10/09/2024 Cotton and General Trading Joint Stock Company 100%
Customers Approval of the investment policy and project
. . . for comprehensive renovation and equipment
- % - . - %
2 02/NQ-HPQT  15/01/2024 Approval of Transactions with Related Parties 100 21 22/NQ-HPQT  16/09/2024 supplementation for Hoa Tho Spinning Factory No. 100%
Evaluation of Production and Business Performance 2-Phase 1
3 03/NQ-HBQT  18/01/2024 . . 100% L . .
1: 2023 Tn:llimple_:rmentatlon of thiiom Plan 5 22 23/NQ-HPQT  20/09/2024 éfopgli)\éa;n(:(f the Credit Limit at the Commercial Joint 100%
i pproval of Loan Transactions with Commercial Joint o
4 04/NQ-HPQT  19/01/2024 Stock Banks 100% Approval of the Credit Limit at the Commercial Joint o
23 24/NQ-HDPQT  08/10/2024 100%
5 05/NQ-HDQT 23/02/2024 Finalization of the List of Shareholders Attending the /1, Stock Bank
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders ’ Approval of the Corporation's personnel organization o
24 25/NQ-HDPQT 10/10/2024 I 100%
Agreement on the Contents of Documents to be activities
6 06/NQ-HPQT  05/04/2024 submitted to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of 100% Evaluation of production and business performance
Shareholders 25  26/NQ-HDPQT 10/10/2024 in the first nine months of 2024 and implementation 100%
7 07/NQHDQT  05/04/2024 Approval of the policy to extend the timeline for the o, of the plan for q4 2024
harmonic project of the corporation. ° approval of the policy on advance payment of 2024 o
26  27/NQ-HBQT  21/11/2024 [~ 100%
Preliminary evaluation of Production and Business dividends to shareholders
8 08/NQ-HPQT  06/04/2024 Activities in Q1 2024 and Implementation of the Plan 100% ) Evaluation of production and business performance o
for Q2 2024 27 28/NQ-HDQT  19/12/2024 in 2024 and implementation of the plan for 2025 100%
i Finalization of the List of Shareholders for Dividend o Approval of the 2025 plan and action program of the o
9 09/NQ-HBQT  17/04/2024 Payment in 2024 100% 28  29/NQ-HBQT  20/12/2024 Board of Directors 100%
10 10/NQ-HDQT  19/04/2024 Adiustmentofthe contentof Resolution 09/NQ-HDQT 50, 29 30/NQ-HPQT  31/12/2024 Approval of transactions with related parties 100%
dated April 17,2024
1 11/NQ-HPQT  06/05/2024 Approval of the Policy on Profit Distribution for 2023 of 100% 30 31/NQHPQT  31/12/2024 Approval of the Credit Limit at the Commercial Joint 100%

Hoa Tho Construction Mechanical Company Limited

Stock Bank
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ACTIVITIES OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER

In 2024, the Independent Board Member
participated in 100% of the BOD meetings and made
important contributions to corporate governance.
Concurrently, the Independent Board Member also
provided consultation and critical feedback before
voting on matters under the authority of the Board
of Directors, upholding the spirit of the law.

The Independent Board Member has a deep
understanding of the textile and garment industry,
which is very advantageous for contributing
to the BOD during the process of directing and
implementing the objectives, tasks, and plans
assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The Independent Board Member performs the
assigned rights and obligations in accordance
with relevant legal regulations, the Corporation’s
Charter, and the Resolution of the General Meeting
of Shareholders. In 2024, the Independent Board
Member completed the following tasks:
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» Performing the assigned rights and obligations
honestly, carefully, and to the best of their ability
to ensure the maximum legitimate interests of the
Corporation.

» Loyal to the interests of the Corporation and
shareholders; not using information, secrets, or
business opportunities of the Corporation for
personal gain or to serve the interests of other
organizations or individuals.

» Providing a comprehensive overview of the
interests of all relevant stakeholders, offering
opinions and decisionsto enhancethe effectiveness
and feasibility of the BOD’s decisions, improving the
Corporation’s business performance, and ensuring
the rights and interests of the Corporation and its
shareholders.

Other obligations as prescribed by law and the
Corporation's Charter. The Independent Board
Member performs management functions through
participation in discussions and decision-making
of the BOD, while ensuring that these decisions are
made fairly and reasonably.
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ASSESSMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER ON THE

BOD'S ACTIVITIES

The members of the Board of Directors are
highly qualified, experienced individuals with
good relationships with partners and prestige in
the textile and garment industry. The Board of
Directors constantly learns, expands its vision, and
acknowledges the contributions of its members to
promotethe overall development of the Corporation.
Throughout 2024, the BOD fully performed
its functions and duties as prescribed by the
Enterprise Law, the Corporation’s Charter, and
internal regulations on corporate governance. The
BOD members completed their assigned tasks well
and closely monitored the activities of the Board
of Management, ensuring that the resolutions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
resolutions of the BOD were properly implemented.
The BOD also provided timely support and direction
to the Board of Management in the process of
implementing the company’'s production and
business targets.

The Board of Directors held numerous regular
meetings and solicited written opinions from
members to approve important decisions within
its authority. Board members contributed timely
opinions with a high sense of responsibility
to promptly resolve arising issues, overcome
difficulties, and propose timely solutions to
maintain effective production and business
activities. The Board of Directors chaired quarterly
and annual summary meetings, thereby directing
the production, business, and management
activities of the Corporation.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors consistently
coordinates closely with the Supervisory Board
in supervising business operations, finance,
and investment, ensuring that all decisions
are transparent, effective, and compliant with
procedures, thereby contributing to safeguarding
shareholder interests and maintaining the
Corporation’s sustainable development.

» List of Board members with corporate governance training certificates. List of Board members participating

in corporate governance programs during the year:

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong - Chief Executive Officer, Person in charge of Company governance, participated
in the “Corporate Governance” training course organized by the Securities Research and Training Center
under the State Securities Commission on June 29-30, 2023, and received a certificate for the course.
The members of the Board of Directors, the members of the Supervisory Committee, the CEO, the Person
in charge of Company governance, and other management staff regularly update legal documents and
regulations, and also send representatives to attend training sessions, disseminations, and discussions
on legal documents and regulations related to corporate governance organized by the State Securities
Commission.

] b
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START DATE AS A
POSITION MEMBER OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

MEMBER SUPERVISORY

ALIFICATION
BOARD e CRUS

Head of Board of

1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh . 16/04/2022 Bachelor of Accounting
Supervisors
2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Member 16/04/2022 Textile Technology
Engineer
3 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh Member 16/04/2022 Bachelor of Banking

and Finance

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS

NUMBER OF REASON
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS . C RATE VOTING i’ ]
ATTENDANCE ATTENDING
ATTENDED THE MEETING
1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh 07 100% 100%
2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son 07 100% 100%
3 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh 07 100% 100%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ’.17
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTIVITIES IN 2024

The Board of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment
Joint Stock Corporation, comprising 03 members,
operates according to established regulations.
In 2024, the Board of Supervisors implemented
supervision and inspection at the Corporation,
subsidiaries, and affiliated units, assigning members
of the Board of Supervisors to carry out supervision
according to their expertise, to ensure operations are
effective and compliant with regulations.

The Board of Supervisors’s supervision in 2024
includes the following main contents:

» The Board of Supervisors monitored and evaluated
the implementation of resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and resolutions of the Board
of Directors, ensuring the activities of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management are on
schedule and effective.

» Supervision of the protection of legitimate rights
of employees is emphasized, ensuring a balance of
interests between employees, shareholders, and the
Corporation.

» The Board of Supervisors closely coordinates with
the Internal Audit department to review and evaluate
the effectiveness of the internal control system,

detect and provide early warnings of potential risks,
thereby mitigating risks for the Corporation.

» The Board of Supervisors reviewed the
Corporation’s 2023 financial statements and
monitored the production and business situation
of 2024. These reports were presented at the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

» Financial supervision in 2024 was fully
implemented, including checking accounting
books, ensuring the reasonableness and legality
of financial data, and verifying quarterly financial
statements to ensure accuracy and compliance
with current accounting standards.

» Board of Supervisors members fully participated
in Board of Directors meetings, providing opinions
and recommendations to the Board of Directors and
the Board of General Directors to ensure decisions
are made correctly and effectively.

» The Board of Supervisors holds quarterly
meetings to assess the production and business
situation, and approves the Board of Supervisors’s
reports at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and selects an audit unit for the 2024
financial statements.

m CONTENT | MEETING DATE DETAILED CONTENT RESULT
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Meeting 1

2 Meeting 2

3  Meeting 3

4  Meeting 4

5 Meeting 5

6 Meeting 6

7  Meeting 7

11/01/2024

16/03/2024

02/04/2024

09/07/2024

10/07/2024

05/10/2024

15/12/2024

Evaluation of production and business
activities of the Corporation in 2023

Evaluation of production and business
activities of the Corporation in 2023,
presenting to the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders

Evaluation of the Corporation's produc-
tion and business activities in the first 3
months of 2024

Selection of an independent audit unit
to audit the Corporation's 2024 financial
statements

Evaluation of production and business
activities of the Corporation in the first 6
months of 2024

Evaluation of production and business
activities of the Corporation for the first 9
months of 2024

Evaluation of production and business
activities of the Corporation in 2024

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents

3 Members highly
agreed on the contents
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EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Tex-
tile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation fully imple-
mented its supervision and inspection duties as
regulated. Through this, the BOS acknowledges
that the Board of Directors of the Corporation has
performed its leadership and oversight role in the
Corporation’s production and business activities
very well. The BOD proactively developed and im-
plemented long-term strategies while meeting
short-term objectives in a volatile market context.

The Board of Supervisors commends the Board
of Directors’ decisiveness and flexibility in making
timely decisions to address market challenges and
opportunities. The BOD effectively oversaw and di-
rected the Board of Management in implementing
the resolutions of the General Meeting of Share-

holders, ensuring the fulfillment of revenue, profit,

i

and production and business objectives. Notably,
the transparency in information and reporting has
strengthened shareholder and stakeholder confi-
dence in the company’s operations.

The BOD also maintained regular and ad-hoc meet-
ings to assess the production and business situ-
ation, proposing timely solutions to address ex-
isting issues and enhance operational efficiency.
The close relationship and effective coordination
between the BOD and the SBS have contributed to
mitigating risks and improving the overall perfor-
mance of the Corporation.

The BOS is confident that with the BOD's insight-
ful leadership and sound development strategy, the

Corporation will continue to achieve positive results
in 2025 and beyond.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ’1
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BOS'S ASSESSMENT OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL SITUATION

The Board of Supervisors highly appreciates the production and business performance of

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation in 2024. Financial management and cost

control were implemented effectively, ensuring resources for production and investment

activities. The SBS acknowledges improvements in financial management, including strin-

gent monitoring of financial reporting and cash flow management, contributing to the Cor-

poration’s financial stability. However, the SBS also notes the increase in the cost-to-reve-

nue ratio for sales and administrative expenses, but overall assesses the results as positive.

RESULTS OF THE SBS'S SUPERVISION OF THE BOD, EXECUTIVE
BOARD, AND COMPANY MANAGEMENT IN 2024

The Board of Supervisors fully participated in the
Board of Directors’ meetings, monitoring activities
related to the implementation of documents and
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders
and the Board of Directors, as well as contributing
opinions on important issues such as inventory
control, debt collection, and risk management.
From 2024-03-10 to 2024-03-18, the Board of
Supervisors audited Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation’s 2023 Financial Statements and
submitted a report to the Board of Directors and the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors also assessed the
Corporation’s  activities in  Quarter 1/2024,
recommending areas for improvement for the
Board of Directors and Board of Management to
consider and implement for better management
of the Corporation’s production and business
activities.

Under the authorization of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Board of Supervisors also
evaluated and proposed the selection of an audit
firm for the 2024 financial year.

The Board of Supervisors also audited Hoa
Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation’s
financial statements for the first six months of
2024 and submitted a report to the Board of
Directors and Board of Management assessing the
Corporation’s activities during the first six months,
first nine months, and the full year of 2024 based
on the Board of Management’s estimated 2024
figures. The report also recommended areas for
improvement for the Board of Directors and Board
of Management to consider and implement for
better management of the Corporation’s production
and business activities.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EVALUATION OF THE COORDINATION BETWEEN THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF

MANAGEMENT AND SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Supervisors, Board of Directors, and Board of Management activities are closely coordinated
based on compliance with current regulations of the Enterprise Law, the Corporation’s Charter, and internal
regulations on corporate governance, to facilitate all parties to complete the tasks assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The BOD and the Board of Management have created all favorable conditions
for the Board of Supervisors to access records, documents, and control the Corporation’s data when
needed. Besides, the Board of Directors and Board of Management always listen to and accept the Board of

Supervisors’s recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND OPERATIONAL DIRECTIONS OF BOS FOR 2025

To accomplish the tasks in 2025, the Supervisory
Board (SB) will continue to focus on closely
monitoring the activities of the Board of Directors
(BOD) and the Executive Board, ensuring that the
implementation of the plan is in accordance with
legal regulations, the Corporation’s Charter, and its
internal regulations. According to the key solution
groups developed by the Board of Directors and
presented to the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Supervisory Board recommends that the BOD
and Executive Board focus more on the following
areas::

» The Board of Directors and Executive Board have
created favorable conditions for the Supervisory
Board to access documents and records, as well
as monitor the Corporation’s data when needed. In
addition, the Board of Directors and Executive Board
always listen to and consider the contributions of
the Supervisory Board.

» Research and develop a functional model, recruit
appropriate personnel for the Garment Product
Development Research Center, focusing on research
and development as the foundation for changing
business methods and creating added value for the
Corporation’s garment products.

» Continue to review and assess the effectiveness of
the Corporation’s financial investments, developing
specific and timely solutions for investments that
have not been effective in order to protect the
Corporation’s capital.

» Take the lead in implementing smart garment
factories, a new model in production and
business, and seek flexible breakthrough solutions
todifferentiate the Corporation in the textile industry.

» Further strengthen the practice of cost-saving
in production, sales, and management to enhance
operational efficiency in the units, contributing to
further improving financial indicators and striving
to achieve the 2025 plan.

» Implement risk management according to
the three-line governance model, focusing on
controlling and promptly addressing risks arising
in departments and units.

» As a listed company, the Corporation needs to
focus more on improving its corporate governance
system and enhancing transparency. In the context
of the government’s policy on streamlining, the
merger and restructuring of state agencies,
especially the State Securities Commission, will
bring about significant changes in management
and legal processes, stock issuance, securities
trading, and corporate governance.

» Strengthen the role of internal audit, focusing
more on auditing operations to provide early
warnings about potential risks within the
Corporation.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT ’1

HOATHO
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
DATE OF APPOINTMENT
MEMBERS OF BOARD OF | DATE OF
QUALIFICATION OF MEMBERS OF THE
MANAGEMENT BIRTH
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh Master  of Business
! (General Director) 10/05/1976 Administration 11/10/2024
Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh Master of  Business
2 (Deputy General Director) 06/02/1977 Administration 21/07/2014
Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau Bachelor of  Foreign
3 (Deputy General Director) 10/10/1980 Languages 01/08/2020
Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung Bachelor of Economics -
4 (Chief Executive Officer) 01/05/1978 Business Administration 21/07/2014
Mr. Phan Quang Long Bachelor of Economics -
> (Chief Executive Officer) 15/05/1970 Finance and Accounting 02/01/2016
Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang .
6 (Chief Executive Officer) 29/10/1969 Bachelor of Economics 01/08/2020
Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong .
7 (Chief Executive Officer) 24/01/1966 Bachelor of Accounting 01/01/2020
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang Master  of  Business
8 (Chief Executive Officer) 19/09/1985 Administration 06/04/2023
Ms Nguyen Thi Minh .
9 Hang (Chief Executive 11/12/1989 bachelor of International 06/04/2023
Business Administration
Officer)
10 Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong 1 ,4;/1983  Bachelor of Accounting 01/07/2020

Long(Chief Accountant)

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TOWARDS THE BOARD OF

MANAGEMENT

» The BOD's supervision of the Board of Management is
carried out through weekly and monthly plans for the BOD
to work directly with production units and professional
departments to grasp the production and business situation,
and supervision through the activities of the Corporation’s
Internal Control Board.

» After supervision, the Board of Directors has issued a
written request to the General Director to immediately
implement some solutions to overcome shortcomings,
boost production, and improve the business efficiency of
member units. The Board of Directors highly appreciates
the spirit of unity, sense of responsibility, scientific working
spirit, and high determination of the Corporation’s Board of
Management, effectively and fully implementing the strategic
tasks, resolutions of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, and resolutions of the Board of Directors.
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HOATHO

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE BOARD AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SALARY, BONUS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS INSIDER STOCK TRADING
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE | AT THE END OF THE PERIOD
PARTY TO THE | RELATIONSHIP WITH Al Rﬁ\f&SR?;;g :
TRANSACTION INSIDERS DECREASE
1 Chairman of the BoD 90,999,999 872,338,833 -
2 Member 1 BoD 90,999,999 - - Son of Mr. Nguyen
1 NoguyenPham — Duc Tri-Member 4,0 (g0 50000  0.14% ?rt;r?:azltjurocr?: o
3 Member 2 BoD - 1,959,244,269 712,111,111 My Duyen of the Board of ’ o ’ P HOSE
Directors
4 Member 3 BoD 93,333,332 - -
5  Member 4 BoD 288,888,886 96,666,666 Son of Mr. Nauyen Stock Purchase
ember 4 Bo ,888, - ,666, i-
p  NguyenDuc Duc Tri-Member 54 555 (0g% 50000 0.14% Transactions on
Thinh of the Board of HOSE
Directors
1 Head of BoS - 520,306,014 81,000,000 Nguyen Thanh Insider - Member Stock Purchase
3 of the Supervisory 117,780 0.33% 120,380 0.33%  Transactions on
2 Member 1 BoS 40,000,000 - - Son Board HOSE
3 Member 2 BoS 40,000,000 - -
1 General Director - 1,486,079,762 373,222,222
General Director |
2 (Dismissed on October 11, 2024) - 1.188,543,161 956,555,555 I !
-
3 Member 1 BoM - 1,441,158,529 473,222,222 | yill
| I '

4  Member 2 BoM - 1,310,131,032 451,000,000

7  Member 5 BoM - 1,036,422,482 277,777,778

| | ] .

. | | | :

5 Member 3 BoM - 1,239,885,276 276,333,334 I + T i + I ! I |
| + ‘ ‘

6 Member 4 BoM - 1,122,037,595 277,777,778 ‘ + + ‘

8  Member 6 BoM - 1.184,160,304 278777778 + + ‘ ‘ + * ‘ |

9  Member 7 BoM ; 1,099,134,355 233,333,334
10 Member 8 BoM - 1,098,550,731 256,555,556
11 Member 9 BoM - 702,253,891 373,222,222

(Dismissed on September 1, 2024)
12  Chief Accountant - 1,034,082,709 167,666,666
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE BOARD AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS

Transactions between the Company and its affiliated persons or between the Company and its major

shareholders, internal persons and affiliated persons

ORGANIZATION/

INDIVIDUAL NAME

RELATIONSHIP

WITH THE
COMPANY

NSH NO.*

DATE OF
ISSUE

PLACE OF ISSUE

ADDRESS

TIME OF

TRANSACTIONS

WITH THE
COMPANY

RESOLUTION NO.
OR DECISION NO.
APPROVED BY
GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS/
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS
‘\'" -
. )
‘R
)

CONTENT, QUANTITY, TOTAL
VALUE OF TRANSACTION

-
-
o

P

\
=
3
I

[==]=ta
oo

nbn
=DD
b mm] o
oooo

Frequent transactions, under 35% of
the total asset value of the Corporation

. . Major Department No. 25 Ba Trieu . . ;
Vietnam National ; | . i Resolution No. 02/NQ- . as recorded in the most recent financial
1 Textile and shareholder 4199190008  06/01/2021 ©f Business Hang Bai Ward Year2024  HDQT dated January -S3SINgassets,salesagency, g ioments: Frequent lending transactions
Parent Registration of Hoan Kiem District Re-lending ADB Loan o
Garment Group - Hanoi Cit - Hanoi Cit 15,2024 under 10% of the total asset value of the
pany y y Corporation as recorded in the most recent
financial statements
e Department of 855 Hung Vuong .
Qsaeﬁhga?r%ant 8$b::1?;rt)i/6n Planning and Street, Duy Trung Resolution No. 02/NQ- gaa;r;:]ent b;u)rci)rc]:eszwg, szﬁ?net Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
2 Joi);t Stock Re?ated to 4000939407 05/12/2020 Investment of Village, Duy Xuyen Year 2024 HDQT dated January of c?é)ds y mgaterials ang asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Comban Insiders Quang Nam District, Quang 15,2024 macﬂiner 'and equi m'ent in the most recent financial statements
pany Province Nam Province y quip
. . Department of 26  Nguyen Tat .
Hoa Tho Hoi An 8?”3{138%22’ Planning and Thanh, Tan An Resolution No. 02/NQ- Eazgi?]ent bﬂr?ﬁeszwg' Szlsiisnet Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
3 Garment Joint Re?ated to 4000837028 22/12/2011 Investment of Ward, Hoi An Year 2024 HDQT dated January of géds y mgaterials ang asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Stock Company Insiders Quang Nam City, Quang Nam 15,2024 macﬂiner 'and cqui m'ent in the most recent financial statements
Province Province y quip
e 36 Ong Ich Duong,
E'gr?s-lipfction gl;'basﬁg?{én Bgairitgneangdﬁ Hoa Tho Dong Resolution No. 02/NQ- Mechanical processing, Frequenttransactions,under 35% of the total
4 Mechanics Regllated to 0401705303 12/11/2015 Investm%nt of Da ward, Cam Le Year 2024 HPQT dated January construction, buying and asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Company Limited  Insiders Nang city g;ts;rlct, Da Nang 15,2024 selling of goods in the most recent financial statements
) S Department of Ngoc Son Hamlet, . .
Ei?\ighci)nn-li-:ang gl:bas:ﬁg%'bn Planning and Binh Phuc Village, Resolution No. 02/NQ- Egg'rgg an:rr?.elllgg ?r]: cot;%rg Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
5 Joint SRcock 9 Re?ated to 4001020020 23/09/2019 Investment of Thang Binh District, Year 2024 HDQT dated January seIIin' o¥ o'ods )r/na%hiner asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Compan Insiders Quang Nam Quang Nam 15,2024 and egui rr?ent ’ Y in the most recent financial statements
pany Province Province quip
. Subsidiary; Department of 31 Phan Chau Trinh, . i . o
Hoa Tho Fashion Organization Planning and Hai Chau 1 Ward, Resolution No. 02/NQ Sales agency, buying and Frequenttransactlons,unde(SSAofthetotal
6 Joint Stock Related 0401290899 10/06/2022 | D Hai Ch Distri Year 2024 HDQT dated January i f d asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Company elated to nvestment of Da al au_District, 15,2024 selling ot goods in the most recent financial statements
Insiders Nang city Da Nang City !
Department of Cho Lo Industrial .
HoaTho PhuNinh  Organization Planning and Cluster, Tam Thai Resolution No. 02/NQ- IC;a;rSrir:lent bﬁr?ﬁeszwg' szﬁisnet Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
7 Garment Joint Related to 4000851992 22/05/2017 Investment of Village, Phu Ninh Year 2024 HDQT dated January of géds ymgaterials ang asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Stock Company  Insiders Quang Nam District, Quang 15,2024 mac%iner 'and equi m'ent in the most recent financial statements
Province Nam Province y quip
Department National Highway .
Hg?n-rg:rr?lﬁ?g Organization of Business 1A, Ha Lan Town, Resolution No. 02/NQ- I(éa;rsrir:]ent bﬁr?r?eszlr?c?’ Saeﬁisnet Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
8 Joint Stock Related to 4000735347 14/07/2020 Registration, Thang Binh District, Year 2024 HDPQT dated January of gclads y mgaterials ang asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Compan Insiders Quang Nam Quang Nam 15,2024 macﬂiner 'and equi m'ent in the most recent financial statements
pany Province Province y quip
Department 122 Duong Thieu
Hue Textile Organization of Business Tuoc, Thuy Duong Resolution No. 02/NQ- Sales agency. buvina and Frequent transactions, under 35% of the total
9 Garment Joint Related to 3300100628 29/06/2023 Registration of ward, Huong Thuy Year 2024 HDPQT dated January sellin 019 oo)(g’s ying asset value of the Corporation as recorded
Stock Company  Insiders Thua Thien Hue town, Thua Thien 15,2024 gorg in the most recent financial statements

Province

Hue

12 I
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE BOARD AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Transactions between insiders of the Company, related persons of insiders and Subsidiaries, Companies
controlled by the Company: None

Transactions between the Company and companies in which members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Supervisors, General Director and other managers have been and are founding
members or members of the Board of Directors, General Director within the past 3 years

ORGANIZATION/

NO. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMPANY DATE OF

NSH NO.* PLACE OF

INDIVIDUAL NAME ISSUE ISSUE

ADDRESS

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS '7

RESOLUTION NO.
OR DECISION NO.
APPROVED BY
GENERAL MEETING

OF SHAREHOLDERS/

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

CONTENT, QUANTITY,

TOTAL VALUE OF
TRANSACTION

HOATHO

Swyy
gV
2 2R}

Subsidiary; Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh
- Deputy General Director and

Departmen rmen
Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong - Chief epart .e ! Ga . ent Frequent transactions,
. of Planning 855 Hung Vuong processing, asset o
Hoa ThoDuy  Executive Officer, are currently the ) . . under 35% of the total
Xuyen Garment  Chairman and Member of the Board and Street, Duy Trung Resolution No. 02/ leasing, buying and asset value of the
y . . 4000939407 05/12/2020 Investment Village, Duy Xuyen Year 2024 NQ-HDQT dated selling of goods, _
Joint Stock of Directors of the Company; Ms. . . Corporation asrecorded
S of Quang District, Quang January 15, 2024 materials, and .
Company Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh - Head of the . . in the most recent
. . Nam Nam Province machinery and .
Supervisory Board, is currently the Province equipment financial statements
Head of the Supervisory Board of the qauip
Company
Department Garment
Subsidiary; Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau P . . Frequent transactions,
. of Planning 26 Nguyen Tat processing, asset o
. - Deputy General Director and Ms. . . . under 35% of the total
Hoa Tho Hoi An . . and Thanh, Tan An Resolution No. 02/  leasing, buying and
. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long - Chief . : asset value of the
2 Garment Joint 4000837028 22/12/2011 Investment Ward, Hoi An Year 2024 NQ-HDQT dated selling of goods, .
Accountant, are currently the . . Corporation as recorded
Stock Company ) of Quang City, Quang Nam January 15, 2024 materials, and .
Chairwoman and Members of the . . in the most recent
. Nam Province machinery and .
Board of Directors of the Company . . financial statements
Province equipment
Subsidiary; Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh Department 36 Ong Ich Duon Frequent transactions,
Hoa Tho Y guy g. of Planning 9 9 . Mechanical under 35% of the total
Construction - Member of the Board of Directors and Hoa Tho Dong Resolution No. 02/ rocessin asset value of the
3 . and Deputy General Director, is 0401705303 12/11/2015 ward, Cam Le Year 2024 NQ-HDPQT dated P . 9 . .
Mechanics . Investment . construction, buying Corporation asrecorded
. currently the Chairman of the district, Da Nang January 15, 2024 ) .
Company Limited , : of Da Nang . and selling of goods in the most recent
Members' Council of the Company . city .
city financial statements
Department Buying and selling  Frequent transactions
Subsidiary; Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh of Plannin Ngoc Son Hamlet !
Hoa Tho - Thang Y guy g. g g . ' ) of cotton, fibers,  under 35% of the total
Binh Spinnin - Member of the Board of Directors and Binh Phuc Village, Resolution No. 02/ arn buvingand  asset  value of the
. P g and Deputy General Director, is 4001020020 23/09/2019 Investment Thang Binh Year 2024 NQ-HDQT dated y ! ying .
Joint Stock . - selling of goods,  Corporation asrecorded
currently the Chairman of the of Quang District, Quang January 15,2024 . .
Company , : . machinery and in the most recent
Members' Council of the Company Nam Nam Province . .
Province equipment financial statements

—
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE BOARD AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS LAY

h)

members of the Board of Supervisors, General Director and other managers have been and are founding

Transactions between the Company and companies in which members of the Board of Directors, ﬁ&
members or members of the Board of Directors, General Director within the past 3 years :

RESOLUTION NO.
OR DECISION NO.

CONTENT,
SRR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE DATE OF GG RUE=D B Y QUANTITY,

*
NO. INDIVIDUAL COMPANY NSH NO. ISSUE PLACE OF ISSUE ADDRESS GENERAL MEETING TOTAL VALUE OF

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS/
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

TRANSACTION

Subsidiary; Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong -

Chief Executive Officer, is currently Department of 31 Phan Chau Frequent transactions, under

Hoa Tho Fashion the Chairman of the Board of Planning and Trinh, Hai Chau 1 Resolution No. 02/NQ- Sales agency, 35% of the total asset value of
5 Joint Stock Directors and Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong 0401290899  10/06/2022 9 Ward, Hai Chau Year 2024 HDQT dated January  buying and selling the Corporation as recorded
) . Investment of Da - . .
Company Long - Chief Accountant, is currently Nang cit District, Da Nang 15,2024 of goods in the most recent financial
the Head of the Supervisory Board gety City statements
of the Company
Garment
. ] Department of Cho Lo Industrial processing, asset Frequent transactions, under
HoaTho PhuNinh ?rfjrlmlat-eGi?lr:rz?B};;e’\cftgrl:’izagrg?wzc Planning and Cluster, Tam Thai Resolution No. 02/NQ- leasing, buying and 35% of the total asset value of
6 Garment Joint 9 . ' Y 4000851992 22/05/2017 Investment of Village, Phu Ninh Year 2024 HDQT dated January  selling of goods, the Corporation as recorded
the Chairman of the Board of Lo . . )
Stock Company . Quang Nam District, Quang 15,2024 materials, and in the most recent financial
Directors of the Company . . )
Province Nam Province machinery and statements
equipment
Afﬂl|at§ Company; Mr. Nguyen Garment
Duc Tri - Member of the Board of . . . .
. . . Department National Highway processing, asset Frequent transactions, under
Hoa Tho Quang Directors, is currently the Chairman . . . : o
Nam Garment  of the Board of Directors of the of Business 1A, Ha Lan Town, Resolution No. 02/NQ- leasing, buying and 35% of the total asset value of
7 . 4000735347  14/07/2020 Registration, Thang Binh Year 2024 HDQT dated January  selling of goods, the Corporation as recorded
Joint Stock Company, and Mr. Nguyen Van _ . . .
: . Quang Nam District, Quang 15,2024 materials, and in the most recent financial
Company Cuong - General Director, is currently . . .
; Province Nam Province machinery and statements
the Head of the Supervisory Board equipment
of the Company. quip
Mr. ‘Nguyen Duc .T” - Member of Department 122 Duong Thieu Frequent transactions, under
. the Board of Directors, and Mr. . . o
Hue Textile Nauven Naoc Binh - Member of the of Business Tuoc, Thuy Duong Resolution No. 02/NQ- Sales agency, 35% of the total asset value of
8 Garment Joint guy g. 3300100628  29/06/2023 Registration of ward, Huong Thuy Year 2024 HDQT dated January  buying and selling the Corporation as recorded
Board of Directors, are currently the : . . )
Stock Company . Thua Thien Hue town, Thua Thien 15,2024 of goods in the most recent financial
Chairman and Member of the Board .
Province Hue statements

of Directors of the Company

Transactions between the Company and the company that its affiliated persons with members of Board
of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Director (General Director) and other managers as a member of
Board of Directors, Director (General Director or CEO)

RESOLUTION NO. OR

CONTENT,
DECISION NO. APPROVED !
ORGANIZATION/ RELATIONSHIP WITH THE > DATE OF QUANTITY,
INDIVIDUAL NAME COMPANY NSH NO. ISSUE PLACE OF ISSUE ADDRESS TIME BY GENERAL MEETING OF TOTAL VALUE OF
SHAREHOLDERS/ BOARD TRANSACTION
OF DIRECTORS
Ms. Pham Thi My is the wife of Department of 19-21 Cam Bac 1, Resolution No. 02/NQ Embroidery grsequefnth translactions, Iunde;
; ; ; ; . - % of the total asset value o
ThienTinC Mr. N Duc Tri - Memb f Pl d Hoa Tho D d, . .
1 en .|n , ompany . higuyen u? " erT.1 ero 0400509320 22/01/2024 anning an oa 1o .ong war Year 2024 HDQT dated January 15, processing for the Corporation as recorded
Limited the Board of Directors, Director Investment of Da Cam Le district, Da . :
_ ) ) 2024 garments in the most recent financial
of this Company. Nang city Nang city statements

127 I
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Corporate Information

Enterprise Registration

Certificate No. 0400101556 30 January 2007

The Enterprise Registration Certificate of the Corporation has been amended several times, the most
recent of which is Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0400101556 dated 11 October 2024, The
Enterprise Registration Certificate was issued by the Da Nang Department of Planning and
[nvestment,

Board of Management Mr. Nguyen Van Hai
Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri

Chairman (from 11/10/2024)
Chairman (until 10/10/2024)

Ms. Tran Tuong Anh Member
Mr. Neguyen Ngoc Binh Member
Mr. Le Quoc An Member

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri
Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

Member (from 11/10/2024)
Member (until 10/10/2024)

Supervisory Board Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh  Head of Board
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Member
Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh Member
Board of Directors Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh General Director (from 11/10/2024)

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai
Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh
Ms. Tran Tuong Anh
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh
Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau
Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung Managing Director
Mr, Phan Quang Long Managing Director
Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang Managing Director
Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong Managing Director
Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Hang Managing Director
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang Managing Director
Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long  Chief Accountant

General Director (until 10/10/2024)
Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Registered Office 36 Ong Ich Duong Street
Hoa Tho Dong Ward, Cam Le District
Da Nang City

Vietnam

Auditor KPMG Limited
Vietnam

Deputy General Director (until 31/8/2024)
Deputy General Director (until 10/10/2024)

/ m28\e\
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation”)
presents this statement and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation
for the year ended 3| December 2024.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to
financial reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Directors:

(a) the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 5 to 54 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation as at 31 December 2024, and of its
consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for
Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Corporation will not be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement. authorised the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for issue,

Board of Directors

en Ngoc Binh
General Director

Da Nang, 10 March 2025
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KPMG Limited Auditor’s Opinion

ggtggggrh?:iansgt?:gg lﬁgqrr:;%;fg:dz In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
South Tu Liengistrict‘ (iancl Miatham respects, of the consolidated financial position of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn as at 31 December 2024 and of its consolidated results of operations and its consolidated cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT to financial reporting.

To the Shareholders KPMG Limited
Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation Vietnam

Audit Report No. 24-04-00038-25-2

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment
Joint Stack Caorporation (“the Corporation™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2024, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended
and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Corporation’s Board of
Directors on 10 March 2025, as set out on pages 5 to 54.

Management’s Responsibility

ELOF Truong Tuyet Mai
' : : 4 ; s Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
The Corporation's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and true and fair Certificate No. 1901-2023-007-1 Certificate No. 2594-2024-007-1

presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the Board of Hanol, 10 March 2025
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Deputy General Director

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

=
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Viethamese Standards on Auditing. Those "ﬁ
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material TY
misstatement. W
G
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and -
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's :};

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Corporation’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Corporation's Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited, a Vietnamese one mambser imited Babilty company and a mamber Fim of tha
KPMG global arganization of independent membar firms affifated with KPMG Intermational Limited,
a private English cempany imited by guarantes, All rights resended,
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31/12/2024
Code Note VND
ASSETS
Current assets
(100 =110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150) L 3,095,(199,428,163
Cash and cash equivalents 110 5 467,127,892,045
Cash 111 20,290,892,045
Cash equivalents 112 446,837,000,000
Short-term financial investments 120 254,147,000,000
Held-to-maturity investments 123 6(a) 254,147.000,000
Accounts receivable — short-term 130 531,304,978,294
Accounts receivable from customers 131 7 516,827,779,410
Prepayments to suppliers 132 4,750,973,972
Loans receivable 135 8(b) 2.342.860,000
Other receivables 136 9(a) 13.093,354,258
Allowance for doubtful debts 137 10 (5,709.989.346)
Inventories 140 11 788,055,765,802
Inventories 141 791,169,053,920
Allowance for inventories 149 (3,113,288,118)
Other current assets 150 54,423,792,027
Short-term prepaid expenses 151 15(a) 13,026,440,121
Deductible value added tax 152 41,397.351,906
Taxes and others receivable from
State Treasury 153 18(a) -

1/1/2024
VND

1,761,375,593,537

210,985,575,944
13,763,575,944
197,222,000,000

176,606,702,730
176,606,702,730

538,886,472.,472
515,334,151,341
15.141,926,365
2,342.860,000
11,777.524,112
(5,709,989,346)

765,957,784,829
776,023,985,593
(10,066,200,764)

68,939,057,562
13,000,500,880
52,278,789,960

3.659,766,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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1/1/2024
YND

746,345,151,927

5,698,452,545
4,685,720,000
1,012,732,545

665,744,250,468
663,880.001,252
2,039,265,934,358

(1,463,390,331,197) (1,375,385,933,136)

1,864,249216
12,780,311,016
(10,916,061,800)

921,944,983
921,944,983

26,116,541,850
17,166,518,501
7,755,702.000

(6.805,678.651)
8.000,000,000

47,863,962,081
45,561,989,804
2,301,972.277

31/12/2024
Code Note VND
Long-term assets
(200 =210 + 220 + 240 + 250 + 260) 0 Sl Pt At
Accounts receivable — long-term 210 3,335,572,947
Loans receivable — long-term 215 8(b) 2,342.860,000
Other long-term receivables 216 O(b) 992,712,947
Fixed assets 220 743,409,697,671
Tangible fixed assets 221 12 741,857,629,190
Cost 222 2,205,247,960,387
Accumulated depreciation 223
Intangible fixed assets 227 13 1,552,068.481
Cost 228 13,247,792,834
Aeccumulated amortisation 229 (11,695,724,353)
Long-term work in progress 240 16,490,702,063
Construction in progress 242 14 16,490.702,063
Long-term financial investments 250 19,321,903,158
Investments in associates 252 6(b) 18,371,879,809
Equity investments in other entities 253 6(b) 7,755.702,000
Allowance for diminution in the value
of long-term financial investments 254 6(b) (6,805,678.,651)
Held-to-maturity investments 255 6(a) -
Other long-term assets 260 44,598,312,839
Long-term prepaid expenses 261  15(b) 42,994 997 756
Deferred tax assets 262 16 1,603.315.083
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 2,922,215,616,846

2,507,720,745,464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

. _ 31/12/2024 1/1/2024 Code N 2024 2023
Code Note YT e W N VND VND
RESOURCES Reve.nfje from sa}es of goods and
provision of services 01 28 5,111,153,311,349  4,703,966,718,679
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 300 1,998,251.477.307  1,670,914,709,684
Revenue deductions 02 28 8,224,632,538 3.757,144,627
Current liabilities 310 1,790,076,791,322  1,441,464,680,083
Accounts payable to suppliers 311 17 275,303,517,197 231.658,729,897
Advances from customers 312 7.777,743,098 10.310.976,519 Net revenue (10 = 01 - 02) 10 28 5,102,928,678,811  4,700,209,574,052
Taxes and others payable to State Treasury 313 18(b) 32.004,718.263 16,008,977.997
Payables to employees 314 327.726,660,491 338,575,244,295 Cost of sales 11 29 4,510,716,526,556  4,268,076.376.,832
Accrued expenses 315 19 6,704,298.618 5.156,076,393
Unearned revenue — short-term 318 87.787.572 64,771,915
3 '} ¥ G - o
Othe shiort-term payables 319 20 136,191,540,073  115.412.086.009 bR el gl bty &b $92,212,152255  432,133,197,220
Short-term borrowings 320 21(a) 926,129.534,398 642.688.671.718 Financial income 21 30 115,656,671,875 84,155,373,745
Provisions — short-term 321 41,898,300 - Financial expenses 22 31 §4,086.085,086 69.,386,809,704
Bonus and welfare fund 322 22 78.109.093,312 81.589.145,340 In which: Interest expense 23 39,892 375,132 38519684807
o Share of profit in associates and
Long-term liabilities 330 208,174,685,985  229,450,029,601 jointly controlled entities 24 1,848,161,308 2,399,707,495
Long-lcrm advances from customers 332 = 1,998,966,734 SEI]il‘Ig expenses 25 32 1093491 ,732,853 84., 1 05,696,267
Other long-term payables 337 - 454,600,000 General and administration expenses 26 33 181,620.716,393  158,353,864,802
Long-term borrowings 338 2I(b) 207.696.853,193 226,484,939.447
Deferred tax liabilities 341 16 477.832.792 511,523,370 T I ——
30 334,518,451,106 206,841,907,687
EQUITY (400 = 410) 400 923,964,139,539 836,806,035,780 {30 =20+ (21 - 22) + 24 - (25 + 26)} ’ ’ ’
Owners’ equity 410 23 923,964,139.539  836,806,035,780 Other income 31 34 20,996,517,837 10,280,757,806
Share Capital 411 24 360.027.080.000 360.,027.080.000 Other expenses 32 35 2.642.741.822 6.312,135.168
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 4lla 360,027,080.000 360,027,080,000 '
Other capital 414 5.090,730,000 3.300.280.000 Bomibbe of oifier aclivis
Investment and development fund 418 25 216,569.826,120  206,579.950,294 ( i ;’2) B 40 18,353,776,015 3,968,622,638
Retained profits 421 302.002.876.633 227.896.456,204 = ) . f
- Retained profits brought forward 42la 165,095,767,253 145,922 388,021 o\ Al.cguntmi[:]ro it before tax 50 352,872,227.121 210,810,530,325 Tﬁ
- Retained profit for the current year 421b 136,907, 109,380 81,974,068, 183 '/;g (50=30 +40) g
Non-controlling interest 429 40.273.626.786 39,002.269,282 wch Income tax expense — current 51 37 69,703,161,427 37.001,410,572 G
e,
TOTAL RESOURCES - Ki :
(440 = 300 + 400) 440 2,922,215,616,846  2,507,720,745,464 ;\ Income tax expense— deferred 52 37 664,966,616 3,935,717,795 M
“i
= Net profit after tax (60 =50 - 51 - 52 =
10 March 2025 - L SEIRMS by i 2 60 282,504,099,078  169,873,401,958 M-

Prepared by:

p

Pham Anh Thao
Accounting Specialist

Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
Chief Accountant
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Nguyen Ngoc Binh
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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; 2024 2023
Code Note VND VND
o : =50-51-5

Net profitafier i (60 =80 - 51 - 53) 60 282,504,099,078  169.873,401,958
(brought forward from previous page)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 61 280.917,941,380 171.980.838.183
Non-controlling interest 62 1.586.157,698 (2.107.436.225)
Earnings per share Restated
Basic earnings per share 70 38 6.634 4.360

10 March 2025

Prepared by:

CO PHAN

™~ %l DETmaY
' ’ \‘: HOA THO,
e e N

Pham Anh Thao Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
Accounting Specialist Chief Accountant

cuyen Ngoc Binh
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024

(Indirect method)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowances and provisions
Exchange losses arising from revaluation of
monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies
Profits from investing activities
Interest expense

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Change in receivables

Change in inventories

Change in payables and other liabilities
Change in prepaid expenses

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other receipts from operating activities
Other payments for operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets and
other long-term assets

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
and other long-term assets

Payments for granting loans, purchase

of debt instruments of other entities
Receipts from collecting loans, sales of
debt instruments of other entities
Receipts of interests and dividends

Net cash flows from investing activities

Code

01
02
03

04
05
06

08

09
10
11
12

14
15
16
17

20

21

23

24
27

30

Note

18(b)

Form B 03 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2024
VND

352,872,227,121

125,301,691,014
(6,911.014,346)

10,777,816,840
(26,215,362,783)
39,892,375,132

2023
VND

210,810,530,325

123,954,055,538
(31.969,703,639)

8,240,828.272
(23,915,961,872)
38,519.684,807

495,717,732,978

15.979,863,757
(15,145,068.327)
9.549,118,124
(1.267,994,990)

325,639,433,431

(49,577.640,322)

178.634,694,057
23.,649,729,604
(8.078.523,162)

504,833,651,542

(39,951,477.111)

(56.581,404,038)
340,000,000

(18,971,454.347)

470,267,693,608

(38,474.535.011)

(57,973,657.094)
32,639.419

(9,161,400,627)

389,669,316,046

364.690,740,295

(186,162,984,066)
1.576,930,131
(608.023,000,000)

540,825,562,730
24.927,620,279

(94.998,377.573)
937,360,909
(271,534,478.495)

229,519,735,765
15,844,938,678

(226,855,870,926)

(120,230,820,716)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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2024 2023

Code Note VND VND

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings 33 4.212,017.847,204  3,725.391.182.603
Payments to settle loan principals 34 (3,959.130.474.096) (3.663.012.509.094)
Payments of dividends 36 (159,880.227.000)  (120.,499,545,500)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 93,007,146,108 (58,120,871,991)
Net cash flows during the year
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 255,820,591,228 186,339.,047,588
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 60 210,985.575.944 24.500.930.736
of the year
Effect of exch-ange rate fluctuations on cash 61 321,724,873 145,597,620
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61) 70 5 467,127,892,045 210,985,575,944
10 March 2025 e
0010155,
Prepared by: Appr qu‘l e CaNG TY
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Pham Anh Thao
Accounting Specialist

Nguyen Thi Tuong Long

Chief Accountant General Direcior
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stoek Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

Ownership structure

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation™) is incorporated as a joint stock
company in Vietnam. The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended 3 |
December 2024 comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries and the interest in associates and jointly
controlled entities.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Corporation and its subsidiaries are to produce, trade, import and export
clothes, fabric, fibre, equipment, and raw materials for the garment and textile industry.

Normal operating cycle

The normal operating cycle of the Corporation and its subsidiaries is generally within 12 months.

Corporation structure

At 31 December 2024, the Corporation has subsidiaries and associates:

% of equity owned and %
of voting rights

No. 31/12/2024 1/1/2024

Subsidiaries

1 Hoa Tho Fashion Join Stock Company 76.88% 76.88%

2 Hoa Tho - Hoi An Garment Joint Stock Company 54.18% 54.18%

3 Hoa Tho - Duy Xuyen Garment Joint Stock Company 81.73% 81.73%

4 Hoa Tho - Thang Binh Spinning Joint Stock Company 74.49% 74.49%

5  Hoa Tho Construction Mechanics Company Limited 100% 100%
Associates

1 Hoa Tho - Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company 30.61% 30.61%

2 Hoa Tho - Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company 20.00% 20.00%

As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation and its subsidiaries had 9.631 employees (1/1/2024: 10,133
employees),
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting,

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows. are
prepared on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash
flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Corporation is from 1 January to 31 December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Corporation’s accounting currency is Viemam Dong (“VND™). which is also the currency used
for consolidated financial statement presentation purpose. For the segment reporting, the amounts
have been rounded to the nearest thousand described in Note 4.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Corporation in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Corporation. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at date of acquisition.

Changes in the Corporation’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as transactions with owners. The difference between the change in the Corporation’s
share of net assets of the subsidiary and any consideration paid or received is recorded directly in
retained profits under equity.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
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Loss of control

When the Corporation losses control over a subsidiary. it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary when
control is lost is stated at the carrying amount of the retained investment in the separate financial
statements of the Corporation adjusted for appropriate shares of changes in equity of the investee
since the acquisition date, if significant influence in the investee is maintained, or otherwise stated at
cost,

Associates and jointly controlled entities (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Corporation has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are
initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Corporation’s share of the profit or loss of the
associates, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Corporation, from the
date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. The
carrying amount of investments in associates is also adjusted for the alterations in the investor's
proportionate interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee's equity that have not been
included in the income statement (such as revaluation of fixed assets, or foreign exchange translation
differences, etc.).

When the Corporation’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of
that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further
losses 1s discontinued except to the extent that the Corporation has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

[ntra-group transactions, balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Corporation’s interest in the investee.

Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Corporation. Control exists when the
Corporation has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

Cost of a business combination (cost of the acquisition) is the aggregate amount of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the acquirer in the acquisition in exchange for control of the acquiree and any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired, identifiable liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date.

)
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
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Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at actual
rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VIND are translated into VND
at the account transfer buying rates and account transfer selling rates at the end of the annual
accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Corporation most frequently conducts
transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes,

Investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Corporation’s management has the intention and
ability to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at bank. These
investments are stated at costs less allowance for doubtful debts,

Investments in equity instruments of other entities

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognised at cost which include
purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
investments are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made for
diminution in investment value if the investee has suffered a loss which may cause the Corporation
to lose its invested capital, unless there is evidence that the value of the investment has not been
diminished. The allowance is reversed if the investee subsequently made a profit that offsets the
previous loss for which the allowance had been made. An allowance is reversed only to the extent
that the investment’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct
labour and attributable manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
of inventory items, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries apply the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair,
maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year in
which the cost is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

* buildings and structures 10 - 25 years

= machinery and equipment 5-15 years
*  motor vehicles 5-10 years
»  office equipment 3 -5 years
= gthers 2 -5 years

Intangible fixed assets

Software

Cost of acquiring of new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised
and treated as an intangible asset. Cost of software is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to 5
years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
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Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of tangible and intangible fixed assets which have not
been fully completed or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during
the period of construction and installation.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Prepaid land costs

Prepaid land costs comprise prepaid land lease rentals, including those for which the Corporation and
its subsidiaries obtained land use rights certificate but are not qualified as intangible fixed assets
under prevailing laws and regulations, and other costs incurred in conjunction with securing the use
of leased land. These costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease of 50 years.

Tools and instruments

Tools and instruments include assets held for use by the Corporation and its subsidiaries in the normal
course of business whose costs of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not
qualified for recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulations. Cost of tools and instruments
are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 years.

Other long-term prepaid expenses

Other long-term prepaid expenses mainly comprise rental and asset improvement expenses. Other
long-term prepaid expenses are initially stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
a period ranging from 2 to 10 years.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

Provisions

Except for the provisions as defined in other notes, a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Corporation and its subsidiaries have a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
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Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recognised at issuance price less incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of shares, net of tax effects. Such costs are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

Taxation

Income tax on the consolidated profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes, The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Revenue and other incomes

Goods sold

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the
possible return of goods. Revenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting
sales discounts.

Processing services

Revenue from processing services is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
goods have been processed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the ordering party. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Interest income

[nterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding
and the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Leases

Leased assets

Assets held under lease contracts of which the Corporation and its subsidiaries, as lessee, does not
assume substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and are
not recognised in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

Related the Corporation presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“*EPS™) for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders after
deducting any amounts appropriated to bonus and welfare fund for the annual accounting period of
the Corporation by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. At
reporting date and for the year then ended, the Corporation had no potential ordinary shares and
therefore does not present diluted EPS.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Corporation and its subsidiaries that is engaged
either in providing related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Corporation and its subsidiaries is
believed to operate in the two business fields which are garment and yarn production.

Geographical segment of the Corporation and its subsidiaries is defined based on geographical
locations of markets and customers of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. The Board of Directors
consider the areas generating more than 10% of revenue as a segment need to be reported.
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(u)

Hoa The Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Corporation and its subsidiaries if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party
in making financial and operating decisions, or where the Corporation and the other party are subject
to common control or significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities
and include close family members of any individual considered to be a related party.

Related companies refer to the parent company — Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group and
its subsidiaries and associates.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these consolidated financial statements is presented as corresponding
figures. Under this method, comparative information for the prior year is included as an integral part
of the current year’s consolidated financial statements and is intended to be read only in relation to
the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year. Accordingly, the comparative
information included in these consolidated financial statements is not intended to present the
Corporation’s consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operation or consolidated cash
flows for the prior year.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts receivable from customers

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customer

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND

160.078,938.476  227,158.560.082
124,387.033,539 86.827,098,602
232,361.807,395  201,348,492,657

Motives International (Hong Kong) Limited
Haggar Clothing Co.
Other customers

516.827,779.410  515,334,151,341

At 31 December 2024, accounts receivable from customers with a carrying value of VND141,421
million (1/1/2024: VND36,904 million) were pledged with banks as security for short-term
borrowings granted to the Corporation and its subsidiaries (Note 21(a)).

Accounts receivable from customers who are related parties

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
The parent company
Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 121,055,860 143,590,666
Associates
Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company - 41,610,032
Hoa Tho — Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company 3,118,303 -
Related company within Vietnam National Textile
and Garment Group
Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company 53,265,600 -
177.439,763 185,200,698

The trade related amounts due from related parties were unsecured, interest free and are due within
90 days from invoice date.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Loans receivable

Loans receivable detailed by significant borrower

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Related party — an associate
Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company (*) 4,685,720,000 7,028.580,000

This loan was unsecured, earned interest at a rate of 6.7% per annum (1/1/2024: 10.0% per annum)
and will be repaid according to the repayment schedule within 60 months from the first drawdown
date of 25 January 2022.

Loans receivable classified by payment term

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VYND VND
Short-term 2.342.860,000 2,342.860,000
Long-term 2.342.860,000 4,685,720.000

4.685,720,000 7,028,580,000




(b)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

Other receivables

Other short-term receivables comprised:

Acerued interest income

Short-term deposits

Advances to employees

Provisional import tax paid
Provisional personal income tax paid
Others

Other long-term receivables comprised:

Deposit for premise lease

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
3,937.823.412 5,514,556.964
164,456,250 1,479,481,000
1,516,186.862 2,130.593.214
339,996,504 339.838.279
6,356,296,046 1,222,036,165
778,595,184 1,091,018,490
13,093,354,258 11,777,524,112
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
992,712,947 1,012,732,545

et e

-
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Bad and doubtful debts

10.

1/1/2024

31/12/2024

Recoverable

Overdue
period

Recoverable

Overdue

Allowance amount

Cost
VND

Allowance amount

Cost

period

VND

VND

Overdue debts
Duyen Dat Trading
Services Co., Ltd.

(5.709,989,346)

5.709,989.346

Over 3 years

5.709,989.346  (5,709,989.346)

Over 3 years

Of which:

(5.709,989,346)

(5,709,989.346)

Allowance for doubtful debts




HHIE)

—
0114

(17 10N saueIpisqns s} pue uoijeiodio)) aif) 0] pajuels SEUIMOLIO] ULID)-3UO| pUB ULID}-HOYS 10
Anoas se syueq yim pagpajd atom (UoH[IW £€9°89CANA HT0T/1/1) UOHIIW 096 09EANA JO n]eA FuILIED © Yiim S19s58 Paxy dfqIue) “p7(T Jquiada(] [ €IV

"BSM AATJOR Ul [[1IS OIB Y2ILM Ing

fuoru 6EZ LO8ANA FT0Z/1/1) $TOT 12quisda( | £ I8 se pajeioaidap A nj a1om yoIrym uol|[1W 670 698ANA SUISOD SJASSE 2IaM SJAsSe pax1] a[jqIfuer) ul papnjouf

061°6Z9°LS8 1¥L
TET'100°088°€99

SILEPTLILT]
€LT'8L8°E18°01

808°689°L¥9°S
6L 65T/ 1

EE0°LYTLYS 9L
060°588°C6E°EE

6L1°T1T95L°69T
CESOLL LRSS 9PT

SSHOLT HET'BLE
096556 665 1LE

LO6T TEE06E €Y |

069°8v0°TE1°S6

9F1°61T°€TL'6

6+6 SY8'T3E°E9

OTI'LOE'LOE° IS0l  98T0SS V8L EVT

(876°610°0EF9E)
6008 1+ VEF FT |
9C1°EER"CRESLE T

(£62°08°€97)
00L'SES00T'E
£8T'E95°S61°26

9TLE9LTIS
(SHSFSHOT)
LTOSLF LIS
8€6°161°CEV'S

(L88°S6T°19¢)
881°vZE6YL6
8V9°LI8766°CS

(9TL°€9L°T16) -

(60Z°c0r'TI0'EE) (FLOPIOTELD)
£96°LL8°TIS'S8  [EITITWSI'ST
860°'859°6LE°666  691°T09TSE 12T

L8E096°LYT'SOTT SOP'TOET 66T 901

#S6'806°0LEST

Z86'TE0'0ET 0T

[86°€09°908°6TF" 1  S9VTI0'IFS ELS

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

(90°80£°€0S°LE)
96£° 160 F86°LLI
L99°TYT 106°ST

(£6T°058°€927)
1 mo,mﬁ.hmgqm
IELTEP TP

RREPEG'SIT6E0T 9SS THT'600°E01

aNA
L2 LA

aNA
SO

SHS 09169
(srsrsrior)
699911’y
£S6'8E°LSY
ZEELS0916°6

aNA
1mamdmba

RO

(aouputg Jo Lysugy ayl fo $1oz/21/CE pap
DLG-LL/FT0Z/Z0Z ON APJN2ALD) 42pun panssy)
NH/NA — 60 § w104

zZ DS
= s
S Zo8
S AEE
() R
T L Spq
g o= S
=] ﬂ_ﬁy
=] BN.#
o ~ =
o il
= OOM
- M2y
e k=
= s B
o o
.M Ao~
S W
'z &, e
Wty
= S o~
=] = e
- =5
@ e,
- 2 s
LA e
' = .5
£ =S
s
R
=
7]
|
o
e
8
7 a1
i
=
-
&
=
=
2
1=
=]
]
=t
o
=
)
w
=
=]
<
..m.\l;
=T
o =2
-
.
& e
o
Z 2

Allowance
VND

1/1/2024

Cost
VND

Allowance
YND

31/12/2024

Cost
VYND

Inventories
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(1,043,278,429)

(487,038,128) 121,656,620,675
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Included in inventories at 31 December 2024 was VND90,203 million (1/1/2024: VND153,439

million) of goods in transit, raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, merchandise inventories

and goods on consignment carried at net realisable value,

As at 31 December 2024, inventories with a carrying value of VND676,790 million (1/1/2024:

VND683,795 million) were pledged with banks as security for short-term borrowings granted to the

Corporation and its subsidiaries (Note 21(a)).
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13.

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Intangible fixed assets

Software
VND

Cost

Opening balance 12,780,311.016
Additions 467,481,818
Closing balance 13,247,792,834
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance 10,916,061,800
Charge for the year 779,662,553

Closing balance 11,695,724,353

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

1,864,249.216
1,552,068.481

Included in intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND9,273 million which were fully amortised
as at 31 December 2024 (1/1/2024: VNDS8.,371 million), but which are still in use.

W2k @& /&

14.

15.

(a)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

Construction in progress

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Transfer to tangible fixed assets

Closing balance

Major constructions in progress were as follows:

Investment in yarn equipment
Trieu Phong Garment Factory — phase 3
Others

Prepaid expenses

Short-term prepaid expenses

Prepaid operating lease expenses
Tools and supplies

Prepaid insurance expenses

Other short-term prepaid expenses

Form B 09 — DN/HN

2024
VND

921,944,983

193,552.848.476
(177.984.091,396)

(Issued under Circular No. 202/20]4/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2023
VND

17,435,128,396
57,697,268,032
(74,210,451.445)

16,490,702,063 921,944,983
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VYND
16,376,257,618 -
- 293,540,191
114,444,445 628,404,792
16,490,702,063 921,944,983
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
2,237,099,382 1,366,700,925
1,937.008.314 2,627,499.460
2.846.600.140 3,227,281,381
6.005,732.285 5,779,019.114
13.026.440,121 13,000.500,880




Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued) (sontinued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN Faro B 09— DINHN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC Cisgued wider Cireylar No, 208201/ TT-BIC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance) dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
(b)  Long-term prepaid expenses (b)  Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties
Prepaid Tools 31/12/2024 1/1/2024
land costs and supplies Others Total VND VND
VND VND VND VND
The parent company
Opening balance 3.752.647,920 21,172,676,518 20,636.665.366 45,561.989.804 Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 4,584,283.628 5,387.148,375
Additions - 12,236,770,966 9,016,732,090  21,253,503,056 :
b fo ‘l:zsaoﬁla{:es Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company 6,264,687 7,600.,436,555
the year (87,610,452) (11,010.835,170) (12,703,634,783) (23,802,080,405) : A i Forirs 22 ol lisss
Disposals = (18.414.699) ! (18.414.699) Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company 3.051,994,197 906.163,602
Related companies within Vietnam National Textile
Closing balance 3,665,037,468  22,380,197.615  16,949,762,673  42.994.997.756 and Garment Group
Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company 308,284,940 5.026.026
Phong Phu Corporation 274,347,052 -
16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities Other related party
31/12/2024 1/1/2024 Thien T11:| Trad]mg Pioductmn Company Llrm.ted 1
Tax rate VND VND —a company whose key management person is a close
family member of a key management person of the
Corporation 180.307.585 69,698,988
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for inventories 20% 218,608,575 1,059,602,624
Unearned revenue and others 20% 1.384,706,508 1,242.369.653 8.405.482.089 13,968.473.546
Total deferred tax assets 1.603,315.083 2.301,972,277 The trade related amounts due to the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are payable
within 30 - 180 days from invoice date.
Deferred tax liabilities:
Allowance for long-term investments 0% (@#77.832,792)  (511,523,370) 18. Taxes and others receivable from and payable to State Treasury
Net deferred tax assets 1.125.482,291 1,790,448,907 (a)  Taxes and others receivable from State Treasury /
SE‘
: 1/1/2024 Paid Net-off 31/12/2024 5
17. Accounts payable to suppliers !
M PP Land rental 3,659,766,722 - (3.659,766,722) o A
k.
(a) Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers Q
Cost and amount
within payment capacity
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VYND VND

Hultafors Group AB
Other suppliers

23,110,495.965

252,193.021,232

18,705,524,789

212,953,205,108

275,303,517,197

231.658.729.897




(b)

19.

20.

(*)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

Taxes and others payable to State Treasury

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

1/1/2024 Incurred Paid/net-off 31/12/2024
VND VND VYND VYND
Value added tax 4,695,601,531 155.025.394,899 (154,908,028,813) 4.812.967.617
Import tax 262,017 2,353,322,894 (2.353,584,911) -
Corporate income tax ~ 10.912.233.936 69.703.161,427 (56.581,404,038) 24,033,991,325
Personal income tax 400,736,979  15.196,536,007 (12.439.513,665) 3,157,759,321
Land rental - 14.310,726,880 (14.310.726,880) -
Other taxes 143,534 1,371.649,456 (1.371,792,990) -
16,008.977.997 257.960.791,563  (241.965,051,297) 32,004.,718,263

Accrued expenses

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VYND VND
Operating costs 3.592.217.427 1,930,053.738
Interest expense 409,577,669 468,679,648
Electricity and water costs 2,393,272.038 2,207,788.650
Others 309,231,484 549.554.357
6,704,298.618 5,156,076,393
Other short-term payables
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Trade union fees 20,023.823,327 17.781.619,769
Advances from customers for payments on behalf 1,396,591,175 936.449.270
Dividends payable (*)
= Vietmam National Textile and Garment Group — the
parent comparny 60,822.6135,000 33,685,512,500

®  Thien Tin Trading Production Company Limited
— a company whose key management person is a
close family member of a key management person
of the Corporation

B (ther shareholders

Others

226,551,000
42.548,876,600
3,173,082,971

188,792,500
35,320,202,100
5,499,509.870

136,191,540,073

115.412,086,009

The dividends payable included the second tranche dividends advanced for 2024 and were paid on

23 January 2025.

IS/ &2 a\ah

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

21.

Short-term borrowings

Borrowings

(a)

31/12/2024
Carrying amount
and amount within

Movements during the year

1/1/2024
Carrying amount

Unrealised foreign

exchange

differences
VND

and amount within

repayment capacity
VND

Increase Decrease
VND VND

repayment capacity
VND

917,966,922,801

2,379,403.664

615.708.065.808 4.,212,017,847.204 (3,912,138,393,875)

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of long-term

borrowings (b)

8,162,611,597

141,272,744

(26,980,605,911)

8,021,338.,854

26,980,605.910

926,129,534,398

2,520,676.408

642,688.671.718 4,220,039,186,058 (3.939,118,999.786)

1/1/2024

31/12/2024

Annual
interest rate

Currency

Terms and conditions of short-term borrowings were as follows:

Bank borrowing 1 (i)

180,064,321,836

426,032,327.,527

25%-3.1%

USD

3.50% - 3.60%
2.6% - 3.0%

2.6%-3.1%

UsD
UsSD

Bank borrowing 2 (i)

39.159,534,223
179,949.256,061

27,773,921.413
244.600,157,644

Bank borrowing 3 (i)
Bank borrowing 4 (i)

UsD

55,133.,854,140
26,741,755,703
79.,409,343,845
55,000,000,000

86,362,907.945
31,869,587,844
69,396,695,846

Bank borrowing 5 (i)

31.666,283.486

3.7% - 3.9%
3.4%

uUsD
VND

Bank borrowing 6 (i)
Bank borrowing 7 (i)

2.5%

VND

250,000,000

Bank borrowing 8 (ii)

2.6%
6.0%

VND

Borrowing from Retirement Board (ii)

265,041,096

VND

615,708,065,808

917,966,922,801
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(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
shareholders’ meeting. This fund is used to pay bonus and welfare to the employees of Corporation

and the subsidiaries in accordance with the bonus and welfare policies of the Corporation and the

This fund is established by appropriating from retained profits as approved by shareholders at
subsidiaries. Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Bonus and welfare fund
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(9.161,400.627)

(18,971.454.347)

Utilisation

81,589,145,340

78,109,093,312

Closing balance
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Share capital

The Corporation’s authorised and issued share capital are:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
Number of Number of
shares VND shares VND
36,002,708 360.027.080.000

Authorised share capital 36,002,708 360,027,080,000

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares 36,002,708 360,027,080,000 36,002,708 360.,027,080,000

Shares in circulation

Ordinary shares 36,002,708 360,027,080,000 36,002,708 360,027,080,000

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings
of the Corporation. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. All
ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Corporation’s residual assets.

Share capital issued and in circulation of shareholders is as follows:

31/12/2024 and 1/1/2024
Issued and in circulation

Number of VND o,
shares
Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 22.274,205 222,742.050,000 61.87%
Other shareholders 13,728,503 137,285,030,000 38.13%
36,002,708 360,027,080,000 100%
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26.

27.

(a)

(b)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued wunder Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Investment and development fund

Investment and development fund was appropriated from retained profits in accordance with the
resolution of General Meeting of Shareholders. This fund was established for the purpose of future
business expansion.

Dividends

On 12 April 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation resolved to distribute
dividends in cash amounting to VND126,009 million (equivalent to a dividend rate of 35% of charter
capital) for 2023, which included the dividends advanced in 2023 amounting to VND90.007 million
(2023: dividends in cash amounting to VND120,012 million (equivalent to a dividend rate of 40% of
charter capital) and stock dividends amounting to VND59,996 million (equivalent to a dividend rate
of 20% of charter capital) for 2022).

On 11 June 2024 and 21 November 2024, the Board of Management of the Corporation approved to
advance payments of dividends to the shareholders amounting to VND36,003 million and
VND108,008 million, respectively (equivalent to a dividend rate of 10% and 30% of charter capital)
from the retained profits of 2024.

Off balance sheet items

Lease

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND

Within one year
Within two to five years
More than five years

28,941,716,857  28,196.625.103
98,687,793.233 108.411.419,265
166,214,887,509 182.337,480,838

293,844,397,599 318,945,525,206

Foreign currency

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
Original VND Original VND
currency equivalent currency equivalent
uUsD 229.374 5,793,579,100 237,422 5,720,089,141
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Capital expenditure commitments

At the reporting date, the Corporation had the following outstanding investment projects approved
but not provided for in the consolidated balance sheet:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Approved but not contracted 137.940,000,000 176,940,000,000

Approved and contracted 37.790,000,000 56,180,000,000

175.730,000,000 233,120,000,000

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered exclusive of value added
tax.

Net revenue comprised:

2024 2023
VND VND

Total revenue
= Revenue from sales and garment processing
= Revenue from other sales and services

3,064,418,890,446 4,661,983.,627,025
46,734,420.903 41,983,091.654

5,111,153,311,349  4,703,966,718.679

Less revenue deductions
= Sales discounts (3.573.265,020)

= Sales returns (4,651,367.518)
= Sales allowances -

(3,275.248.195)
(411,270.139)
(70,626,293)

(8,224.,632,538) (3,757,144,627)

Net revenue 5,102,928,678.811  4,700,209.574.052

29.

30.
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Cost of sales

Cost of goods and garment processing service
Cost of other sales and services
Reversal of allowance for inventories

Financial income

Interest income from deposits, loans and advances
Dividends received

Realised foreign exchange gains

Other income

Financial expenses

Interest expense
Realised foreign exchange losses
Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Form B 09 — DN/HN

2024
VND

35,027,101,593

(6.952,912,646)

(Issued under Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2023
VND

4,482,642,337,609 4,267.875.737.535

32.170,342,936
(31.969.703.639)

4,510,716,526,556 4.268,076,376,832

2024
VND

23,695,559,460
168.000,000
91.790.089,078
3,023,337

2023
VND

20,410,893,468
168,000,000
63,558,113,953
18,366,324

115,656,671,875

84,155,373,745

2024
VND

39,892,375,132
33.415.893,114
10,777,816,840

2023
VND

38,519,684,807
22,626,296,625
8,240,828.272

84.,086,085,0806

69.386,809,704
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Selling expenses

Staff costs

Supplies and packages
Tools and equipment
Depreciation charges
Outside services
Other expenses

General and administration expenses

Staff costs
Depreciation charges
Taxes, fees and charges
QOutside services

Office supplies

Others

Other income

Gain from disposals of fixed assets
Penalties, compensations and rewards received
Others

Form B 09 — DN/HN

2024
VND

8,733,784,091
782,456,930
360,817.928
885,600,386
81,051,636,577
17,677,436,941

(Issued wnder Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2023
VND

7.450.318.876
727,270,099
357,982,822
929,987,754
56,720,346,717
17,919,789,999

109,491,732,853

84,105,696,267

2024
VND

92.703,477.805
11.474,053,674
14.895,047,623
32,261.415,662

2,337,424 481
27,949.297.148

2023
VND

83.273,524,891
10,874,778,161
7,550,074,463
29.912.428,071
3,521.756.836
23,221,302.380

181,620,716.393  158,353,864,802
2024 2023
VND VND
503,642,015 937,360,909
19.256.239,048 8,149,661,036
1.236.636,774 1,193,735.861

20,996,517.837

10,280,757.806
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Other expenses

Penalties on contract violation and tax late payment
Others

Form B 09 — DN/HN
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2024
VND

763,924,126
1,878.817,696

2023
VND

4,878,493,001
1.433,642,167

2,642,741.822

6,312,135,168

Production and business costs by element

Raw material costs included in production costs
Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Outside services and other expenses

2024
VND

2,632,163,898,063
1.378.587,632,878

125,301.691,014
625.961,594,773

2023
VND

2,371,039.795.168
1,272,835.241,599

123,954,055,538
380,415.634,787

Income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current tax expense
Current year
Under provision in prior years

2024
VND

68,949.371,031
753,790,396

2023
VND

36,344,432,271
656,978,301

69,703,161,427

37.001,410,572

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

664.966,616

3,935.717,795

70,368.128,043

40,937.128,367

00l
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2024 2023
VND VND

Accounting profit before tax 352,872.227,121  210.810.530,325

Tax at the Corporation’s tax rate 70,574,445,424 42,162,106,065
Effect of different tax rates applied in subsidiaries - (227.844.,693)
Non-deductible expenses 1,211,376.,787 735,404,414
Tax exempt income (403,232.262) (513,541.499)
Unrecognised tax losses in subsidiaries 143,081,603 3.304,791,243
Changes in other unrecognised temporary differences (1,206,480,793)  (4.416.284,964)
Under provision in prior years 753,790,396 656,978,301
Tax reduction (*) (704,853,112) (764.480,500)

70,368,128,043 40,937,128,367

The Corporation is entitled to tax reduction under Article 21 of Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC
providing guidance on implementation of the Law on Corporation Income Tax. Accordingly, a
production, construction or transportation enterprise that employs between 10 and 100 female
laborers who account for more than 50% of its total regular employees, or regularly employs over
100 female laborers who account for more than 30% of its total regular employees, is entitled to a
reduction of corporate income tax equivalent to the actual additional expenses for female laborers.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
Temporary Temporary
difference Tax value difference Tax value
VYND VYND VND VND
Deductible temporary
differences 1,877,559,216 375,511,843 7,909.963,181  1,581.992.636

Tax losses in subsidiaries 13,883.786,195  2,776,757,239 13.168.378,176  2.,633.675,636

15,761,345,411  3,152,269,082 21,078.341,357 4,215,668.272
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Deductible temporary differences include interest expenses allowed to be carried forward for
deduction against future taxable profit in accordance with regulation in Decree 132/2020/ND-CP
dated 5 November 2020. This temporary difference of interest expense expired in 2028.

The tax losses in subsidiaries expire in the following years:

Year of expiry

Status of tax review Tax losses available

VND
2028 Outstanding 13,168.378.176
2029 Outstanding 715,408,019
13.883.786.195

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses in subsidiaries because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the subsidiaries can utilise the
benefits therefrom.

Applicable tax rates

For the Corporation

Under the provisions of the current Corporate Income Tax Law, the Corporation has an obligation to
pay the Government corporate income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.

For the subsidiaries

Hoa Tho - Thang Binh Garment Joint Stock Company has an obligation to pay the Government
income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits. The current income tax regulations allow this
subsidiary to have corporation income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 years (from 2016 to 2030), be
exempt from income tax for 4 years starting from the first year it generates a taxable profit (from
2018 to 2021) and entitled to a 50% reduction in CIT for the 9 succeeding years (2022 - 2030).

Other subsidiaries have an obligation to pay the Government income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable
profits.

\?fh—. . = ."‘;?-I//”/
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Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was based on the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding at the time of reporting, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2024 2023
(Shares) (Shares)
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 36,002,708 30,003,075
Effect of payment of stock dividends (Note 26) - 5,990,633
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year 36,002,708 36,002,708

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was based on the
net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders after deducting the amounts appropriated to bonus and
welfare fund for the annual accounting period and a weighted average number. calculated as follows:

2024 2023
Restated

Net profit for the year (VND)
Appropriation to Bonus and welfare funds (VND) (*)

280,917.941,380  171,980.838,183
(42,074,922,821)  (15,017,655,125)

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (VND) 238.843,018,559 156,963,183,058

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the year (shares) 36,002,708

36,002,708

Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 6.634 4360

The estimated appropriation to bonus and welfare fund from net profit for the year ended 31
December 2024 is the estimation made by the Corporation’s Board of Directors. based on the
Corporation’s operating results in 2024,

(c)
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Restatements of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been restated due to actual
appropriation of profit after tax to bonus and welfare fund (Note 22) as follows:

Weighted
average Basic
number of earnings
Net profit ordinary shares per share
VND VND
As previously reported 159,980,838,183 36,002,708 4.444
Effect of appropriation of profit after tax
to bonus and welfare fund (3.017,655,125) - (84)
As restated 156,963,183,058 36,002,708 4360

Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Corporation and its subsidiaries had the following significant transactions with related parties

during the year:

The Parent Company - Vietnam National Textile
and Garment Group

Cash dividends

Share dividends

Sales of goods

Purchase of services

Interest expense

Repayment of loans principal

Associates

Hoa The - Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company
Sales of goods and services

Purchase of goods and services

Receipt of loan principal repayment

Interest income from loans and advances

Hoa Tho - Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company
Sales of goods and services

Purchase of goods and services

Dividends received through offsetting with liabilities

Transaction value

2024
VND

111,371,025,000

15,921,792,165
15.309.999.010
5,735,148911

3,175,954,227
87,957,332,253
2,342,860,000
512,672,733

347 864,992
33,897.357,229
642,800,000

2023
VND

129,932,864,500
37,123,670,000
2,004,546
16,299,307,361
14,617,579,970

2.904,263,006
91,332,736,950
2,342.860,000
922,611,235

304,150,799
77.762,963,938
642.800.000
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Transachionesiie 40. Non-cash investing and financing activities
2024 2023 2024 2023
VND VND VND VND
Related companies within Vietnam National Textile and Payment of share dividends - 59.,996,330.000
Garment Group ) Dividends paid through offsetting with receivables 1,910.830.500 1.415.432.000
Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company Interest income from loans and advances received through
Sales of goods and services 141,166,172 123,639,057 offsetting with liabilities 512,672,733 922,611,235
Purchase of goods and services 398,460,213 659,127,429 Dividends received through offsetting with liabilities 642,800,000 642,800,000
Phu Bai Spinning Joint Stock Company
Sales of goods 459,994,037 -
41. Comparative information
Phong Phu Corporation P
Purchase of goods and services 2,251,027,071 - Comparative information as at 1 January 2024 were derived from the balances and amounts reported
in the Corporation’s audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
Other related party December 2023.
Thien Tin Trading Production Company Limited —
a company with key management personnel being a
close family member of a key management personnel of
the Corporation
Sales of services 63,290,565 3,462,963 10 March 2025 e
Purchase of services 3,067.841,093 5.780,600,060 QA001 01550
Cash dividends 377,585,000 440,516,500 Prepared by: Ap /V{El by: :
7.3/ TONGCONG TY
Key management personnel compensation — = CO PHAN
General Director M ".\ *x\ DET MA\(’)
Salary and bonus 2,438,397.609 2,110,534,224 W@\ HOA THC
Other members of Board of Directors Pham Anh Thao Nguyen Thi Tuong Long  ~———Eiwesen Ngoc Binh
Salary and bonus 15,499.486,664 12,518,447,621 Accounting Specialisi Chief Accountant General Director
Members of Supervisory Board
Salary, bonus and compensation 681,306,014 626,065,159
%
Chairman of Board of Management w
Compensation and bonus 3.208.891,148 2.673,683,166 BNg T
)
Member No.I of Board of Management NHIEM Hi)
Compensation 93,333,332 93,333,328 PMG
Member No.2 of Board of Management }‘Eg’f
Compensation 90,999,999 93,333,328 =
Member No. 3 of Board of Management
Compensation and bonus 385,555,552 333,333,331
Member No.4 of Board of Management
Compensation and salary 425,803,064 93,333,328
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